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wirvung as One

Alignment and engagement
has been the forte of AGIL
oringing unity, while creating
ownership towards vision and
common godals. We perform at
our best practicing adbove and
It has been one of our key
winning factors leading to high

performance and success.
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Established in the 1930s as a trading business,
Al-Futtaim is one of the most progressive
regional business houses headquartered in
Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

Al-Futtaim operates through more than 200
companies across sectors as diverse Qs
commerce, industry and services, and
employs in excess of 42,000 people across the
UAE, Bahrain, Kuwait, Oman, Qatar, Saudi
Arabia, Egypt, Pakistan, Sri Lanka,  Syria,
Singapore and Europe. Entfrepreneurship and
rigorous customer focus has enabled
Al-Futtaim to grow its bbusiness by responding to
the changing needs of the customers and
societies in which it operates. Al-Futtaim is
committed to offering customers an unrivalled
choice of the world’s best brands with
exceptional standards of customer service and
after sales support.

Structured into seven operational divisions;
automotive, electronics, engineering and
fechnologies, retail, financial services, general
services, real estate and joint ventures,
Al-Futtaim maintains a decentralised
approach, giving individual businesses flexibility
and versatility to maintain - a competitive
stance. This benefits employees, providing a
clearly defined work culture where individuals
are empowered with authority and responsibility
for their work.

Al-Futtaim is the holding company of Al-Ghazi
Tractors Limited with 5§0.02% shares.

Annual Report 2018
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Our Journey So Far
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Geographical
Presence

Gilgit Agency

Tribal Areas

Balouchistan

Head Office : Karachi 5= -
Plant; Dera Ghazi Khan : : Sindh

Marketing Centres: Lahore,
Multan, Islamabad, Sukkur,
Dera Ghazi Khan

DEALERSHIP NETWORK

For customized customer satisfaction, AGTL has dotted the whole country with a
large dealer network, and tractor workshop, in every nook and cranny of the
country.
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CNH Industrial is a global leader in the capital goods sector that,
through its various businesses, designs, produces and sells agricultural
and construction equipment, trucks, commercial vehicles, buses and
specialty vehicles, in addition to a broad portfolio of powertrain
applications. Present in all major markets worldwide, CNH Industrial is
focused on expanding ifs presence in high-growth markets, including
through joint ventures.

From fractors and combines, excavators, wheel loaders, trucks, buses,
firefighting and civil protection vehicles to powertrain solutions for on
and off road and marine, the Group designs, produces and sells
‘machines for work’. Across its 12 brands, 64 manufacturing plants, 49
research and development centers and a workforce of more than
69,000 people, CNH Industrial is present in 190 countries giving it a
unigue competitive position.

The Group has the flexibility to pursue the most advantageous strategic
options and capitalize on opportunities for growth and consolidation
consistent with our ambitions for it to become a leader in the sector.

CNHI holds 43.17% shares of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited.

Annual Report 2018 | 11
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AGIL Profile

Incorporated in June 1983, privatized in December 1991, Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited,
the subsidiary company of Al-Futtaim group of Dubdi, is a story of rollicking success.

With consistent corporate achievements, the company is recognized for corporate
excellence and "Best Corporate Performance”.

With its head office in Karachi, the AGTL plant at Dera Ghazi Khan, some 700 kms
away from Karachi, manufactures New Holland (Fiat) tractors in technical
collaboration with CNHI - Case New Holland, the Number One manufacturer of
agricultural tractors in the world. The AGTL plant, an icon of engineering dynamics
operates on high efficiency. With Quality Control and Quality Assurance, quality
improvement systems exist at every level.

One of our mission statement reads: "Our most enduring competitive edge is the
quality of tractors”. Robust and sturdy, the company’s products of 55, 65, 75 and 85
HP, carry a local content of 92% - the highest in the country.

Monitoring the efficiency and effectiveness of each production process is the key to
our success. Effort is made to make each process efficient to drive down the cost
per tractor. Competent material and plant utilization has resulted in the company’s
core strategy of being the lowest cost producer of quality products. AGTL's produced
fractors in all hp ranges are therefore the cheapest quality tractors in the whole
world.

Documentation of the entire manufacturing process and improved quality
measurement being our priority, Al-Ghazi was the first automobile company in
Pakistan to earn the ISO-2000 certification. With yearly audits the company is now
reqistered for ISO-92001:2015 upto September 15, 2021.

AGITL products being a household name with the farmer community, our product
profile reflects consumer needs. Price and convenience being the customer’s first

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd
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priority the company’s objectives include: focus on all target markets and focus on
customers. As many dealers in every nook and cranny of the country, and over 3000
mechanical workshops dot the country to work as customer care centers.

AGTL name is synonymous with stability, brand strength,customer loyalty and
profitability. The Top Stock of the automobile industry of Pakistan with market
capitalization of over hundred times, dividends tell our real story. To the shareholders
we give returns which are almost un-matched in Pakistan’s corporate world.

At AGTL we believe that effective individuals make a difference; effective teams
make a business. Of all the things that we have built the most admired is our
teamwork. AGTL's human talent does not depreciate with time. AGTL workers are
happy workers. AGTL values the stake holders, customers, employees and the
investors. The management works to ensure that all supply chain associates, dealers,
shareholders and employees share in the company’s growth and prosperity.

Al-Futtaim’s flagship in Pakistan with over 93% foreign shareholding, Al-Ghazi Tractors
Limited is a text book example of good corporate governance, conforming to all of
the Corporate Governance Reforms promulgated by the government.

AGTLs long list of accolades received year after year include Top Companies Award
of the Karachi Stock Exchange, Corporate Excellence Award of the Management
Association of Pakistan, Best Presented Annual Report Awards of ICAPR, Best Calendar
Awards of NCCA, Excellence Award on Human Resources and Industrial Relations
and Excellence Award in Productivity from the Employer’s Federation of Pakistan.

AGITLs Vision Statement is categoric: “To make AGTL a symbol of success.” This sets
the direction as well as the destination in sight and each of the employee lives 1o
achieve the company’s Mission.

9
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Our Vision
To Make AGIL

a Symbol of
Success
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Our Mission

With  AGTLs name being synonymous with stability,
profitability, brand strength and customer loyalty, AGTLs
mission is to retain market leadership as the lowest cost
producer of the highest quality products — the most
enduring competitive edge being the quality of our
tractors. With corporate virtue, AGTL's mission is o e a
text book case example of good Corporate
Governance  and  through  Corporate  Social
Responsibility create mutually beneficial relationships
between the Company, Stakeholders and the

Community.
7 @
q
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Values & Ethical Principle

Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited is a public
limited company with 93.19% foreign
shareholding. The Company with its
superior performance is recognized
by all stakeholders as economically
rewarding fo all parties,
acknowledged as being ethically,
Jeleile]1\Y and environmentally
responsible, welcomed by the
communities, businesses, customers
in which it operates. It facilitates
economic, human resources and
community development within @
stable operating environment.

The Directors believe that they can
make a difference within their
sphere of influence. Thus it
envisaged that:

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

The Company should take a leadership
role through establishment of ethical
business principles.

That while reflecting cultural diversity, the
Company should do business consistent
with the  requirements of laws and
regulations in Pakistan.

The Company should show ethical
leadership.

The Company should facilitate the
achievement of sound financial results
and a fair sharing of economic benefits.

The Company must have open, honest
and transparent relationships, which are
considered ciritical to the Company’s
success.




The Company should create a business
environment, which instigates against
bribery and cornruption and refrain from
paricipation in any corupt business
practices.

The Company should maintain good
relations  with  stakeholders  including
confractors, suppliers and other business
activities.

The Company should aspire for stability
and continuous improvement within the
operating environment,

The Company should provide protection
of environment,

The Company should promote

The

community efforts as good corporate
citizens.

The Company should ensure consistency
with labour laws, standards, ensure healih
and safety of workers and their rights.

The Company should promote fraining
and human resource development as an
engine for growth with  particular
reference to the policy on succession
planning.

Company has established a defined

code of ethics and business practices which
is signed by all directors as well as employees
of the Company.

J
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Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

Corporate Focus

To achieve evolution through continuous
change - the deliverables being: to
pursue LEAN MANAGEMENT: to eliminate
all activities which dont add value; to
eliminate waste; to reduce costs; 1o
focus on all target markets; customer
focus and to continuously add custom-

er care centres to give fillip to mechani-
zation of farming in the country.




A

Strateqgic
Planning

With Company’s Vision that sets the destination in
sight; the Company’s Mission, which is stirring,
challenging, believable, and evolved through
consensus; Goals, Objectives, Action Plans, Roles
and Responsibilities clearly defined, Strategic
Planning at Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited aligns the
actionable vision of the Company to reach opti-
mal performance.

Sound business plans are outlined, brainstormed
and developed to coordinate strategies for over-
all success of the Company.

With disciplined efforts to produce fundamental
decisions and actions that shape and guide the
Company with focus on the future, Strategic Plan-
ning at AGTL provides the best way to respond to
circumstances of the Company’s environment,
its resources, and thus incorporating them into
being consciously responsive to a dynamic
changing environment.

Strategic Planning at Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
supports strategic thinking and leads to strategic
management — the basis for an effective organi-
zation.

3
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Directors’ Profile

Mr. Charles Leonard Hunt
Non-Executive Chairman

Appointed August 4, 2009

A seasoned automotive professional, Mr. Hunt brings to Al-Ghazi Tractors many
years of expertise and experience in the automobile industry of UK and USA.

He was educated at Sheffield University, UK.
Mr. Charles Leonard Hunt serves as the non-executive Chairman of the Board.

As Chairman, Mr. Hunt is responsible for leading the Board, setting its agenda
and ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role.

He is also a Certified Director from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.

Mr. Mohammad Shahid Hussain
CEO & Managing Director

Appointed August 05, 2015

Mr. Mohammad Shahid Hussain has more than 30 years of experience
working for Multinationals such as Berger Paints, Philips, Tetra Pak & Makro Cash
& Carry. He is a Marketer by profession besides having hands on experience
in operations and General Management. His last assignment before joining
AGTL was as CEO & Managing Director of General Tyre Pakistan where he
served for more than 6 years.

He holds a Bachelors degree in Economics, and has atfended various
Management Development courses at LUMS, Malaysia, Singapore and
Sweden along with Business Program Diploma from (International Institute of
Management Development) IMD Switzerland.

He is also a Certified Director from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.

20 | Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd




Mr. Colin William Cordery
Non-Executive Director
Appointed December 06, 2017

Mr. Colin William Cordery was appointed to the Board in 2017. Mr. Cordery
serves as a Non-Executive Director of the Board. He is also a member of the
Board's Human Resource and Remuneration Committee and the Board's
Audit Committee. Mr. Cordery has served AGILs majority shareholder,
Al-Futtaim Group, for over a decade and currently heads all its international
automotive businesses.

Mr. Kashif Lawai

Executive Director & CFO

Appointed Dec 07, 2011

Mr. Kashif Lawai was appointed as Chief Financial Officer and Director on the
Board in 2011. He had earlier served as Chief Internal Auditor of the Company.
Mr. Lawai started his professional career in 1996 from A.F.Ferguson & Co, a
member firm of the PwWC network. His experience includes serving Pakistan
Refinery Limited as Company Secretary & Financial Controller. He is a fellow
member of Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan and holds a Masters
Degree in Economics. He is also a Certified Director from Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance.

Mr. M. Ali Qaiyum

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed December 06, 2014

Mr. M. Ali Qaiyum is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
With over 30 years of financial experience, he has worked in areas such as
auditing, freasury, mergers and acquisitions, risk management, strategy,
financial planning and forecasting, implementation of ERPs and financial
reporting. He has worked in these areas in Pakistan, UAE, Oman and UK. Mr. M.
Ali Qaiyum was appointed as an independent Director on December 06, 2014
and chairs the Audit Committee of the Board. He is also a Certified Director
from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.
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Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

Mr. Vincent De Lassagne
Non-Executive Director
Appointed Oct 23, 2015

Mr. Vincent is the Brand Leader for New Holland Agriculture Asia Pacific
Region. He initially joined the CNH in 1995. Within CNH he acquired a
significant experience in the CIS, AME and Asia Pacific markets. Since 2004 he
has been posted as Business Director in Asia Pacific Region. Mr. Vincent de
Lassagne has been appointed on the Board of Al-Ghazi Tractors Ltd from
October 23, 2015. Mr. Vincent holds an Agronomist Engineer degree &
Masters in Marketing & Sales from the HEC University.

Mr. Mark Brinn
Non-Executive Director
Appointed October 25, 2016

Mr. Mark Brinn is Head of SEA, Pakistan & Japan at CNH Industrial being
responsible for the Company’s business geographic area which include
agricultural equipment (New Holland and Case IH Agriculture), construction
equipment (New Holland and CASE Construction) and commercial vehicles
(veco brands). Mr. Mark is engaged with CNH Industrial for 20 years. He
subsequently moved to Bangkok, where he took on responsibility for product
marketing activities for the agricultural equipment brands in South East Asia and
Japan, and was later appointed Business Director for agricultural equipment
operations in the area. Mr. Mark holds a Bachelor's degree in Agricultural
Technology and Management.

Mr. Damiano Cretarola
Non-Executive Director
Appointed August 15, 2012

Mr. Damiano Cretarola joined the Fiat Group in 2004, first working with Fiat Group
International SA as Head of Administration and Control Department, then serving in
the Finance Department of Fiat SpA Group.

In June 2008 he assumed responsibility as a Chief Accounting Officer of CNH
International Region and in 2010 he was appointed Chief Financial Officer. In 2013,
he was appointed as Chief financial officer of CNH Industrial N.V. APAC Region.

Mr. Damiano Cretarola holds a degree in Business Economics from the University of
Fribourg, Switzerland, and a Federal Diploma as Certified Public Accountant from
the "Akademine fur Wirlschaftsprufung” of Zurich.

Mr. Damiano Cretarola was appointed on the Board in 2012 as a non-executive
director. He is also a member of the Audit Committee.




Organizational Chart

< Board of Directors

Human Resource and

Remuneration Committee Audit Committee

\_

Company Secretary Chief Intermal Auditor

Chief Financial Officer
General Manager Plant

General Manager Marketing
General Manager Technical

'xl*\ l*x |
./|./|./ |.J|

Deputy General Manager
Quality Assurance

General Manager Supply
Chain & Procurement

{
D

Deputy General Manager

Head of Human Resource After Sales Service

& Administration

Functional Reporting
........... Administrative Reporting
*Number of employees as at Dec 31, 2018 and average number of employees for the year including factory employees
are disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements
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Significant Events During 2018

AGIL received the coveted award of the Best
Managed Company from the Management
Association of Pakistan. Annual picnic was organized by the Company
at Dream World Resort in June.

The Board of Directors (BOD) meeting was
held to review and approved audited
financial statements for the year ended
December 31st 2017.

New dedlerships were inaugurated country
wide for strengthening dealers network.

Second All AGTL Cricket Tournament was held
Jeotte .at DGK Plant in the month of March.

Mr. Mohammad Shahid Hussain CEO & MD
was awarded Gold Pin by the Parent
Company Al-Futtaim on his outstanding
performance.

Annual General Meeting of shareholders of
the company was held in April 2018 where
distribution of cash dividend of Rs. 25 per
share was approved.

BOD Meeting was held in the month of April for
the approval of Tst quarter financial results.

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd
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BOD Meeting for the 2nd Quarter was held in
the month of July for the approval of half year
financial results and interim dividend of 600%
was announced.

AGIL staff and management visited CNHi
assembly facility in Thailand

Awards Ceremarmy
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I
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AGIL was awarded 3rd position in "Best
Corporate Report Award" by joint committee
of ICAP and ICMAP.

Foundation for construction of new Components . _
et Storage Shed was laid at DGK plant. BOD Meeting was held in the month of

October for the approval of 3rd quarter
..... .financial results.

Independence Day was celebrated at all AGTL
500920 . locations.
y % Engineers Club Convention was organized in
Multan in the month of October.

BOD Meeting for the approval of annual
budget 2019 was held in the month of
December in Dubai.

Dealers Convention and Sales Conference
was held in Thailand in September.
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The Directors of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited (‘the Company’ or 'AGTL) have pleasure to present the
annual report together with the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2018.

Operating Results 2018 _

(Rupees in ‘000)
Sales 19,372,522 18,871,448
Gross Profit 4,665,484 5,259,738
Profit before taxation 3,734,835 4,585,013
Taxation (1,282,321) (1,461,893)
Profit affer tax 2,452,514 3,123,120
Other comprehensive income (20,902) (9.457)
Total comprehensive income 2,431,612 3,113,663

Company Performance

The Company sold 23,933 fractors during the year 2018 as compared to 24,423 fractors sold in the year
2017. The momentum of growth in the Company’s sales continued fill the first half of the year. However, during
the second half of the year sales volume was low in the backdrop of off-season, worsening water crisis
affecting farmers” economic health, post-election scenario and slowdown of overall economic activity. This
resulted in sales volume of the year slightly lower than that of previous year.

Profit before tax for the year ended December 31, 2018 at Rs. 3,735 million is 19% lower than that of previous
year. The Company gross margin remained under pressure owing to significant rupee devaluation, cost of
inflation owing to steep rise of metal prices in the intfernational market and resulting extra-ordinary push from
vendors for increase in prices of components. Further, the Company is currently facing liquidity challenges
and incurring huge financial cost due to hold up of our due sales tax refunds by the authority to the tune of
Rs 1.8 bilion approximately. Significant financial cost was incurred due to increased utilization of overdraft
facility to support business operations on need basis.

Out of the pre-tax profit of Rs 3,735 million, an amount of Rs 1,282 million was charged on account of
corporate tax. The after-tax profit thus stands at Rs 2,452 million translating into earnings per share (EPS) of Rs
42.31.

“Key Operating and Financial Data”, the “Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Financial Statement” highlighted
in the Annual Report testify to the strength of the Company. The Annual Report of the Company was yet again
awarded the prestigious one of the Best Annual Report Award by the Joint Committee of ICAP and ICMAR This
recognition motivates the Company to provide improved information to its shareholders.

JCR-VIS has assigned Ratings of A/A-1" (Single A/A-One) to Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited.
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Appropriations

The financial results for the year under review are as follows: 2018 _

(Rupees in ‘000)
Total comprehensive income 2,431,612 3,113,663
Transfer of general reserve to
unappropriated profit 1,000,000 -
Unappropriated profit — brought forward 835,995 2,069,648
Amount available for appropriation 4,267,607 5,183,311
Final dividend paid for the year 2017:
Rs. 25 per share (2016: Rs. 12.5 per share) (1,449,105) (724,553)
Interim dividend paid for the year 2018:
Rs. 30 per share (2017: Rs 62.5 per share) (1,738,926) (3.622,763)
Unappropriated profit — carried forward 1,079,576 835,995

As far as movement in general reserve during the year is concerned, balance of general reserve as at
December 31, 2017 was Rs. 1 billion. The Board of Directors in its meeting held 19 February 2018 resolved to
transfer general reserves balance as at 31 December 2017 to unappropriated profit. Accordingly, there is no
balance of general reserve as at December 31, 2018.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Board in its meeting held on February 11, 2019, has proposed
a final cash dividend of Rs. 9 per share amounting to Rs.521.6 million.

Macro Economic Environment and Tractor Industry

Pakistan has achieved 5.79 percent GDP growth during FY 2017-18. Agriculture sector regarded as lifeline of
Pakistan’s economy as it accounts for an important part of the country’s GDP and employed bulk of the total
work force. Agriculture sector recorded a growth of 3.81 percent in FY 2018 as compared to the growth of
2.07 percent in corresponding previous year. The country’s agricultural production is closely linked, inter alia,
with the availability of irrigation water and weather conditions. The farmer community and allied industries
may reap benefits depending on improvement of infrastructure including fransport network and other blocks
of modern supply chain, government initiatives, increased demand for high-value perishable products (due
fo growth of urban areas), etc.

Overall the tractor industry withessed a decrease in the calendar year 2018 as compared to the comparable
period. According to published numbers, 63,060 tractors were sold during the current period as against
66,369 last year.

Business performance highlights
The Company remained principally engaged in the manufacture and/or sale of agricultural tractors,
implements and spare parts. The Company launched its improved version of Dabung model during the year

in order to strengthen Company’s presence in high HP segment. Also, the Company has brought in first of its
kind New Hollond Brand Combine Harvesters, Balers, and 95 HP tractors into Pakistan on exploratory basis.

Annual Report 2018




The Company is committed to improve product quality af both incoming and assembly stages. A
sophisticated lab is, therefore, being set up at the plant to ensure receiving of quality components. The
Company is also focusing on vendor capacity building to further strengthen its supply chain in anticipation of
growing demand of high HP tractors. Other areas of plant are also on focus like projects of store sheds,
construction of quality lab, installation of Dynamometers (Engine shop), etc.

The Company has structured its CSR framework to achieve relevant objectives. The Company is focused on
relevant social endeavors such as providing scholarships to merit students of the Universities, developing local
talent, employment of special persons and playing an active role in the social welfare of the community
especially in Dera Ghazi Khan where the plant is located. Considerable efforts have also been made relating
to industrial relations, consumer protection measures and business ethics. On the environmental impact and
measures, the Company has been committed and it has taken certain measures relating to energy saving,
re-use, re-cycling, environmental protection, plantation, fuel efficiency, etc. With the importance of
contributing to the society and environment, during the year the Company contributed a tractor to the
municipality of Dera Ghazi Khan, free of charge.

AGIL received the coveted award of the Best Managed Company from the Management Association of
Pakistan. On April 12 and 13, 2018, AGILs five rupee share was traded at Rs 780 on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange - that is a market capitalization of 156 times - thus giving AGTL a total market value of Rs 45.21
billion. Without any doubt AGTL is one of the top stocks of the automobile industry in Pakistan.

Future Outlook

In line with the mission statement and keeping in view the economic environment affecting the Company as
highlighted above, the Company remains focused on delivery of quality products - the most enduring
competitive edge. Sound business plans are outlined, brainstormed and developed to coordinate strategies
for overall success of the Company. AGTL is driven by optimism and belief on its ever agile workforce. Being
cost effective, having hands on management style along with the high standards of workmanship makes
AGITL a perfect example for growth and development,

The Company continues to focus on quality production and, given its one of values being fo provide
protection of environment, envisages to embark on the journey of infroducing environment friendly products
while continuously up-grading existing models in order to remain competitive in the challenging business
dynamics. This engagement will enable the Company to knock the doors of international market.

Credit rating is an assessment of the credit standing of entities in Pakistan. During the year, JCR-VIS Credit
Rating Company Ltd. (JCR-VIS) has performed the credit rating exercise and has assigned ratings of ‘A/A-1
(Single A/A-One) to Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited. Long Term Rating of ‘A’ reflects good credit quality and adequate
protection factors. Risk factors may vary with possible changes in the economy. Short Term Rating of ‘A1’
signifies high certainty of fimely payment, excellent liquidity factors supported by good fundamental
protection factors. Risk factors are minor. Outlook on the assigned ratings is ‘Stable’.

Effective management through mitigating strategies has been done in response to main risks and
uncertainties facing the Company. For instance: In addressing business risk the Company’s strategies, plans
and oversight takes into account relevant factors; Risk of increase in price of raw materials is kept in check by
price revision committee of the Company; Exchange rate risk has been reduced as the Company’s product
has around 92% local components; Risk of inability fo source raw material is managed by constantly
monitoring the supply base to ensure uninterrupted procurement.

Financial and Corporate Governance Framework

The Company has complied with all material requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017,

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd




Following are the statements on financial and corporate governance framework:

Al Fuftaim Industries Co. LLC., incorporated in UAE, is the holding company of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited,
being the holder of 50.02% shares of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of:

Total numiber of directors:
a) Male 8
b) Female

Composition of board:

a) Independent Director 1
) Other Non-Executive Directors 5
c) Executive Directors 2

The names of directors and Members of board committees are disclosed in this Annual Report.

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of affairs fairly,
the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
except for changes resulting on initial application of standards, amendments or inferpretations to existing
standards. Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of these financial statements.

The system of infernal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
The Basic eamings per share were Rs 42.31 in 2018 compared to Rs. 53.88 in 2017.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability fo continue as a going concem.

The Company has fully complied with the Listing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The pattemn of shareholding has been included in this Annual Report.

The Directors, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary and their spouses and
minor children have not traded in Company’s shares during the year.

The key audited operating and financial results for the last six years have been included in this Annual
Report.

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year. Number of meetings of the Board's
audit committee and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee was four and two respectively.
Details of aftendance by each director / memiber are shown in this Annual Report.

Independent director is entitled only for the fee for attending the meetings as approved by the Board. The
level of fee is appropriate and commensurate with the level of responsibility and expertise. Other
non-executive directors are not entitled to any remuneration. Audited financial statements of the
Company contain details of aggregate amount of remuneration separately of executive and
non-executive directors.

Board Audit Committee reviewed the related party transactions and the Board approved them. These
fransactions were in line with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
the Companies Act, 2017. The Company maintains a thorough and complete record of all such
fransactions. The details of related party fransactions are disclosed in a note of the financial statements
of the Company.
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— Information about taxes and levies is given in the financial statements.

— Statement of value of investments of retirement funds is as follows:
(Rupees in ‘000) Year Ended

Gratuity fund 130,217 June 30, 2018
Provident fund 151,193 June 30, 2018
External Auditors
The present auditors, Messrs. A.F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. The directors endorse recommendations of the Audit Committee for the
re-appointment of Messrs. A.F. Ferguson & Co. as the auditors for the financial year 2019.
Financial Statements on Website
The financial results of the year 2018 would be placed on the Company’s website and can be viewed on
www.alghazitractors.com.
Acknowledgements

AGTLs recognition owes its successes 1o its talented employees — the officers and the workers who leave no
opportunity to shine and devote themselves whole heartedly to the prosperity of the Company.

The Board is grateful to our employees, our supply chain associates, our dealers and our principals — CNH for
their continued support and commitment. We look forward to continuing to deliver results in the coming years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

o~
Mohémmad Shahid Hussain ’kg:t;?awai
Chief Executive Officer Director

Karachi: February 11, 2019
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Chairman’s
Review Report

It gives me immense pleasure to
present the review report for the year
ended December 31, 2018,

Company'’s performance overview

2018 was comparatively a challenging year in terms of profit margins of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited (‘the
Company’). As more fully explained in the directors’ report, the Company was successful in reaching to profit
before tax 1o Rs. 3.74 billion mainly due to sales volume of 23,933 fractors and effective cost management
but with constant pressure on gross margins owing to cost inflation, rupee devaluation and economic
condition of farmers community. Moving ahead, in line with the Company’s vision and mission and while
giving regard to economic environment affecting the Company, focus of the Company’s management will
remain on delivery of quality products and sound business plans for the overall success of the Company. The
Company is fueled by the confidence of its fundamental strengths, the quality of its devoted workforce, the
supply systems, and with its nationwide distribution network and customer care centres. | am confident that
the Company will be successful in meeting the future challenges and targets.

Board’s performance and role effectiveness

The overall performance of the Company’s Board of Directors (‘the Board’) and effectiveness of the role
played by the Board in achieving the objectives of the Company, have remained key assets throughout the
year.

The Board has performed its duties diligently and has managed the affairs of the Company in an effective
and efficient manner. The best interest of shareholders of the Company has been upheld. The Board has
exercised its powers and has performed its duties as stated in the Companies Act, 2017 and the applicable
Code of Corporate Governance. The Company has complied with related principles of the said code as
more fully stated in the Company’s 2018 statement of compliance with code of corporate governance.
Appropriate directors’ reviews have been published with all the condensed interim financial information and
2018 annual financial statements.

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd




The Board recognises that well defined corporate governance processes are vital in enhancing corporate
accountability. It is thus committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance 1o preserve and
maintain shareholder value. The Board has access to complete, adequate and timely information and
resources. Further, in order to have effective and detailed oversight, the Board has established its appropriate
committees for its support. The Board met frequently enough during the year 2018 to discharge its
responsibilities and held five meetings in addition o the meetings held by its committees. The effective role
played by the Board was the key in managing the affairs of the Company whose performance was
remarkable.

During the year, the Company’s Board of Directors has played an effective role in ensuring that the Company
objectives are achieved. | am grateful to the Board for the continued, invaluable and consistent efforts which
were pivotal in achieving excellent results of the Company.

| would like to congratulate all stakeholders for the impressive performance of the Company and commend
the Company’s Board of Directors, management and employees for achieving the said performance.

-

Charles Leonard Hunt
Chairman
Karachi: February 11, 2019
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Position in Value Chain

Our ability to enrich peoples life with quality products depends on the quality of input raw material, efficient
production cycle, vigilant pre delivery inspections supported by our dealers coordination and finest after sales
services for end users. The process is further augmented through sustainable relationship with suppliers,
collaborated environment for employees with strong leadership and using Information Technology platform.

-
-
-
-
-
 a
7’
/7
/ Storage and Binning
Raw material Acquisition V4
Imported Components
Locally Procured Components
After Sales Services
N Delivery to Customers
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
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Assembling of
Tractors -production
of the sheet metal
components and
final assembly

Pre-delivery
Inspection
of Tractors

Transfer of Tractors to Dealers 7

The company procures high quality of raw
material from its local and imported vendors
and assembles NEW HOLLAND tractors as per
international standards to meet customer
demand.
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Composition of Local and Imported
Material and Sensifivity Analysis Due
to Exchange Fluctuation

The Company is exposed to foreign currency fluctuation not only for its direct imported raw materials but also
for those materials which are although procured locally but comprises substantially of imported content.

Due to considerable increase in local and imported metal prices owing to drastic rupee devaluation, the
gross margins remained under extra ordinary pressure during the year 2018.

The exchange rate increased by around 25% during the year, which resultantly increased the raw material
cost by estimated 11%.

Raw Material
Composition

@ Local Component 92%
@® mported Component 8%
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Statement of Adherence with the
International Integrated Reporting Framework

Building and retaining the trust of the Company’s infernal and external stakeholders is essential 1o Al-Ghazi's
continued business success. The Company’'s primary objective under the subject is to enhance shareholder’
and stakeholders’ awareness for better understanding and valued decision making. We always strive to
achieve our objective through excellence in corporate governance and human resource practices.

AGITL has been continuously working tfowards transparency of the information presented tfo its stakeholders. It
has taken into account various fransformations 1o adapt to a changing corporate environment and the need
for additional information beyond the basic financial statements. This information includes management
commentary, governance disclosures, performance analysis, forward outlook and footnotes to the financial
statement, 1o better reflect the corporate reporting for information needs of different stakeholders.

The company is working with a strategy for generating value creation for the organization and its stakeholders.
The presented information is an overview of organisation’s strategy, governance, performance and
prospects. It is imperative 1o ensure, that the material is presented in such a way that it gives all our
stakeholders more halistic view of the organisation.

The Company has included following content elements for the users of this report:

. Organizational overview and external environment
. Strategy and resource allocation

. Risks and opportunities

. Governance

. Stakeholder's relationship and engagement

. Performance and position

. Outlook

. Sustainability and corporate social responsibility

. Excellence in corporate reporting

The adoption of infegrated reporting requires involvement and support of the Board of Directors and the
leadership team. Henceforth, Management of the company provides guidance to achieve company
objectives by advising, assessing, and monitoring business strategies; ensuring the execution and
modification of strategies; and evaluating their own effectiveness and confribution in these activities.
Reporting is being monitored and it is ensured that the relevant information is shared in the most suited way
for the stakeholders of the company.

We will continue to improve the information produced to make it even easier to understand, while taking into
account the opinion of stakeholders reading this report.

-M
Mohammad Shahid Hussain
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi: February 11, 2019
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Statement of Unreserved Compliance of Internationadl
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by Internatfional
Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

Composition

Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited is preparing statutory financial statements in accordance with the IFRS issued by IASB
as nofified under the Companies Act 2017 including the disclosure requirements of fourth schedule.

In addition to this, note 3.1.3 to the financial statement specify few standards, interpretations and disclosures
which are yet to be effective in Pakistan. The Company believes that the impact of such standards,
interpretations and disclosures does not have any material impact to the financial statements.

-
-

-

-

Moha-mmad Shahid Hussain
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi: February 11, 2019
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Significant Factors Affecting the External
Environment & the Organizatfion’s Response

Invariably changing external environment affects political, economic, technological, environmental and
social fronts of an organization. The volatility may impact our capability 1o create value. Some of these

factors and their affect on the company are discussed below:

e P
o
it ”
Political
* Political turbulence
and law and order
Z situation of the
g country generally
% impacts
8 organizations
a negatively

=

Economic

* Economic conditions of a
country such as changes
in rupee devaluation,
interest cost, economic
growth rate, balance of
payment and natural
calamities affects the
overall organization’s
business.

Social

* Companies have to plan
strategies to adapt fo the
social frends. Such as
improvement of living
standards, price sensitive
customers, seeking value
for money behavior of
customers.

* New Political Party
emerged winning
elections in July
2018.

e|Inconsistent policies

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
FROM LAST YEAR

* Limited farmers’ subsidies
by Goverment.

* Rupee devaluation

¢ Increqse in interest rate

* Increased inflation rate

* Huge trade deficit

* Rising customer emphasis
on aesthetics, luxury and
comfort.

* Rapid urbanization of rural
regions due to increased
access of fechnology

Political environment of
the country is being
appropriately
monitored to address
changes in polifical
and business policies
which may have a
considerable impact
on the company’s
business.

Further, the company
duly approach the
regulators in order to
highlight the lbusiness
challenges and its
resolufions.

ORGANIZATIONAL RESPONSE
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AGIL set out appropriate
actions to address the
changes in its business
economic environment
through efficient working
capital management etc.
However, decline in overall
economic conditions in
general and farmers
economic wealth in particular
may pose an adverse effect
on the company’s
performance.

Launching of Limited Editions
of tfractor models with
different aesthetic features.
Further, free services and
fraining programs are also
aranged to facilifate
customers and create
QWareness.




:

Technological

 Technological factors
include technological
aspects such as
Research & Development
activity, quality of the
product, fechnology
incentives have a major
role in company’s
success.

L

Legal

* Companies are required to
abide by the laws and
regulations as laid by the
Govt, of the country in
which it operates

=

Environmental

* Environmental factors such
as weather, climate, and
climatic changes affects
the manufacturing
concems in general and
fractor industry in
particular,

Increased demand of quality
products due to increased
awareness owing to enhanced
usage of information medium
such as intemet and smart
phones,

* Applicably of Companies,
Act 2017

* Finance Act, 2018

* Applicably of various IFRSs

» Water shortage affecting
crop yield and eventually
farmers’ economy

* Increased emphasis of the
authorities over the
environment protection

* Major concern of climate
change due to pollution

The company keep focusing
on technological and quality
advancements.. AGIL has
recently beefed up its tractors
with excellent quality features.
Further, a State of the art fully
equipped Quality Assurance
Lab is constructed for
fechnologically and quality
upgraded products.

The Company gives due
importance to compliance
with all the laws and regulation
applicable in its legal
environment. AGIL hires
professional associates 1o
ensure strict compliance fo all
the gpplicable statues.

AGIL is committed towards
reducing the environmental
impact and protection of
environment. A modem
Effluent Treatment Plant is
functional which treats waste
water from the factory for
utilization in Plantation activities.
All other effluents of smoke,
noise, health and safety fully
meet National Environmental
Quality Standards (NEQS).
Further, over 1000 plants were
planfed during the year as a
part of Clean Green Pakistan
Drive.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is the system of rules, practices and processes by which a company is directed and
controlled. The Board of Directors of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited is committed to providing satisfactory retuns to
its shareholders and fulfilling its corporate governance obligations and responsibilities in the best interest of the
Company and its stakeholders

In pursuit of the highest standards of governance, AGTL has embraced all of the Corporate Governance
Reforms promulgated by its regulators. AGTL's corporate governance framework adheres to the guidelines of
the Revised Code of Corporate Governance 2017,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board is the apex body responsible and accountable for the long term success of the Company.

In addition to its statutory duties, the Board provides entrepreneurial leadership, sefs strategic objectives,
establishes and maintains a framework of prudent risk management and control, sets the Company’s values
and ethical standards and considers sustainability issues.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to its Committees. These Committees report to the Board and
matters deliberated by the Committee are approved by the Board.

The Company's CEO has responsibility for the day-to-day management and is supported in this function by
the AGTL Management Team.

In fulfilling its roles and responsibilities, some key focus areas for the Board during the year 2018 are set out
below:

Key focus areas of the Board during the year 2018 included:

*  Qverseeing management's performance in strategy implementation and monitoring the financial
position of the Company including approval of the financial statements

* Reviewing business operations and development plans including budgets

* Approving the interim dividend of Rs. 30 per share and recommending a final dividend of Rs. 9 per share.

*  Approving revisions to the Company’s policies.

MATTERS DELEGATED TO THE MANAGEMENT

Key responsibility of the management is to ensure that routine business operations and day-to-day
management of affairs are conducted in accordance with the policies and decisions of the Board and in an
effective and ethical manner. The management is also concerned with identification of key risks and
opportunities that could have a relevance to the Company, addressal of the same and o update the Board
with any salient related changes. The Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
financial statements as per applicable accounting and reporting standards and for related internal controls,
while the Board oversees the financial reporting process.

BOARD COMPOSITION
AGITL is committed to ensuring that the composition of the Board continues to include directors who bring an
appropriate mix of skills, experience, expertise and diversity to the Board's decision making.

The Directors believe in having members who can exercise judgment independently, in good faith and in the
best interest of the Company. Hence, out of the eight Directors, only the CEO, Mr. Mohammad Shahid
Hussain and the CFO, Mr. Kashif Lawai are executive directors. To reinforce this believe, the Board is chaired
by a non-Executive Chairman, Mr. Charles Leonard Hunt,

The Independent Director, Mr. M. Ali Qaiyum, has provided his declaration of independence as per the
criteria defined in the Companies Act 2017 to the Chairman of the Board, as per CCG Regulations.
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The requirement for a female director on the board of a listed company has been recently promulgated. The
Company, accordingly, shall address the matter of induction of a female director on its board in the next
election of directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established an Audit Committee and a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee to
assist with the discharge of its responsibilities.

All Board Committees are chaired by and comprise only of non-executive directors. Other directors may
attend the meeting by invitation. Each committee operates under a written specific charter approved by the
Board.

The Chairman of each committee provides a detailed report to the Board along with recommendations of
the Committee.

Names of Director Board Appointment Board Committees
Audit Human Resource
Committee and Remuneration
Committee
Charles Leonard Hunt (Chairman) Non-Executive
Colin William Cordery Non-Executive Member Member
Mohammad Shahid Hussain (CEO) Executive
Kashif Lawai Executive
M. Ali. Qalyum Independent Non-Executive = Chairman Chairman
Damiano Cretarola Non-Executive Member
Mark Brinn Non-Executive
Vincent DelL.assagne Non-Executive Member

In determining the composition of the Board, consideration is given to the optimal mix of background, skills
and experience that will position the Board to guide the Company. The current board members comprise of
business leaders, professionals with financial audit, accounting, human resource backgrounds and
engineers. The Directors’” academic and professional qualifications are shown on pages 20 to 22 of this
Annual Report.

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS

The Board has access to complete, adequate and fimely information and resources. A formal agenda is
prepared for all Board meetings. The agenda and supporting documents are circulated to all directors at
least seven days before the meeting.

The board meets on a quarterly basis to review and approve the release of quarterly results. Ad-hoc meetings
may be convened as necessary 1o consider other specific matters. In addition to having meeting, decisions
of the Board and its Committees may also be obtained via circular resolution. Schedule of all board meetings
and Annual General Meeting (AGM) for the next calendar year is planned in advance.

The Board has access to the CEO, members of the management and the Company Secretary at all times.
The Company Secretary provides support to the Board and ensures that Board procedures and applicable
rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also assists the Chairman in ensuring proper
information flow within the Board and its Committees as well as advising the Board on all governance matters.
The Company Secretary attends all meetings and ensures that minutes are circulated within the stipulated
fime.
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Directors Board Meetings Audit Committee Meetings Human Resource

and Remunerations
Committee Meetings

Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended
Charles Leonard Hunt
(Chairman) 5 3
Colin William Cordery 5 4 4 4 2 2
Mohammad Shahid Hussain 5 5
Kashif Lawai 5 5 4 4
M. Ali. Qaiyum 5 5 4 4 2 2
Damiano Cretarola 5 2 4 2
Mark Brinn 5 4
Vincent DelLassagne 5 3 2 2

* Out of the five Board meetings, four meetings were held in Karachi, Pakistan and one meeting regarding
2019 budget was held in Dubai, UAE.

DIRECTORS TRAINING PROGRAM AND ORIENTATION

As part of the Company’s continuing education for all Directors, articles, reports and press releases relevant
to the Company’s business are circulated to keep all directors updated on industry issues and trends.
Changes in regulations are also informed to the Board. The external auditors routinely update the Audit
Committee on new and revised financial reporting standards relevant to the Company.

As required by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), which mandates Board members
to require cerification, the Chairman, Mr. Charles Lenard Hunt, the CEO, Mr. Shahid Hussain, the CFO, Mr.
Kashif Lawai and the independent director Mr. M.A. Qaiyum are also Certified Directors from PICG.

Further, at the time of induction of a new director, orientation is carried out for the director to acquaint him of
roles and responsibilities to effectively govern the affairs of the Company.

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CHAIRMAN

The Chairman of the Board Mr. Charles Leonard Hunt, is a non-executive director, The Chairman is responsible
for leadership and effective performance of the Board and for maintenance of relationships between
directors that are open, cordial, and conducive to productive corporation.

Duties of the Chairman are:
* To lead and oversee the Board of Directors.

* To facilitate an open flow of information between management and the Board, thus to involve the Board
in the process of effective decision making for the Company.

e To lead a critical evaluation of Company’'s management, practices and adherence to the Company’s
strateqic plan and objectives.

* In accordance with Company law and as and when required chair the meetings of the Board and
meetings of the shareholders in accordance with their ferms of reference.

* To establish, in consultation with the Company Secretary and the CEO, an agenda for each meeting of
the Board.

* To seek compliance of the management to implement the decisions of the Board.
* To work closely with the CEO and provide support and guidance for the management on major issues.
* To promote the highest standards of corporate governance.

* To ensure that the Company has an effective and clear commmunication with its shareholders.
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To ensure that new directors receive appropriate induction into the Company.

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The CEO has executive responsibility over the business directions set by the Board. The CEO is accountable to
the Board for the conduct and performance of the Company.

Responsibilities of the CEO are:

To align the entire Company to the Vision, Mission and Strategy evolved by the Board, such that everyone
will focus his efforts to the success of the Company.

To build a corporate culture and be a role model for the entire organisation.
To set performance standards for the Company and promote those standards with confidence.

To manage the day-to-day operations of the Company's business, strategic planning, budgeting,
financial reporting and risk management.

To build good relationship between and among the employees of the Company, the government, the
supply chain associates, the dealers and other stakeholders of the Company.

To provide strategic leadership to the organisation o ensure its future growth through unexpected as well
as foreseen threats, opportunities and to keep the Company in focus with competition, markets, products
and growth technology.

To set standards required to maintain a competitive advantage in the industry and implement these
standards into the output of the Company.

To build a talented team (hire talent and fire non-performers) and to lead the feam to working together in
a common direction thus fo steer the Company 1o its strategy and vision through direction and effective
communication.

To set budgets, to fund projects which support the strategy and ramp down projects which lose money.
To manage the Company’s capital judiciously and carefully control the Company’s expenditures.

To provide leadership and develop policies and procedures of the Company to ensure compliance of
these procedures and policies.

To develop human resource of the Company, the Company’'s staffing needs of the future, training,
compensation packages and to create a corporate culture of high standards and good value.

To build effective PR for the Company.

EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE, MEMBERS OF BOARD AND OF ITS COMMITTEES
There is a formal process for appraisal of Board performance, memibers of Board and its committees. Annual
appraisals are carried out through a structured questionnaire addressing the following:

Board organization;

Board meeting and materials;

Board responsibility and performance;

Interaction with management and key stakeholders;

The audit committees and internal audit and corporate reporting;

Performance of the Board Committees.

The questionnaire also includes the assessment of the Chairman of the Board including his ability to lead the
Board meetings.
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The evaluation and feedback are consolidated and presented to the Board, through the Human Resource
and Remuneration Committee, for discussion on areas of strengths and weaknesses.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF CEO

Board has an obligation to shareholders to ensure that the Company is led well. Evaluation of the CEO is
therefore a continuous process and is formally taken up by the Board with reference to the "Responsibilities of
the CEQ” as formally approved by the board.

The performance of the CEO is appraised by the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee of the
Board and discussed by the Board. CEO’s performance is evaluated on the performance of business,
accomplishments of objectives with particular reference to profit, goals and corporate success.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST AMONG BOARD MEMBERS

The Company in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance annually circulates and obtains a
signed copy of Code of Conduct applicable to all its employees and Directors. Directors are required to
disclose, at the time of appointment and during their term, the directorships they hold in other corporate
bodies. As per the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, every director is required to provide to the
Board complete details regarding any material fransaction which may bring conflict of interest with the
Company.

Closed periods are determined and announced by the Company, precluding the Directors from dealing in
the shares of the company, prior to each Board meeting involving announcement of interim / final results,
distribution to shareholders or any other business decision which could materially affect the share price. Also,
all directors are required to disclose any transaction in the shares of the Company immediately to the
Company Secretary. All frading in shares of the Company by the Directors or executives and all related party
fransactions are fully disclosed in the financial statements of the Company.

No conflict of interest was reported during 2018.

POLICY FOR CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AMONG BOARD MEMBERS, AND MANAGEMENT OF CONFLICT OF
INTEREST

All business decisions and choices taken on behalf of the Company are made in the best inferests of the
Company. The Directors are obligated to avoid every possible conflict of inferest, with particular regard to
personal or family considerations, which might affect the independence of judgment when deciding what is
in the Company's interests and what is the most appropriate way to pursue it.

POLICY ON NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with corporate law and regulations. Only independent director is entitled for the fee for
attending the Board meetings as approved by the Board.

POLICY OF RETENTION OF BOARD FEE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EARNED BY HIM AS NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR IN OTHER COMPANIES

AGITL has two executive directors on the Board who are not serving as Board member of any other listed
company.

GOVERNANCE PRACTICES EXCEEDING LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

AGITL is committed to compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. In addition thereto, the Company
also endeavors 1o go the extra-mile voluntarily in ferms of adopting best governance practices exceeding
legal requirements and following are examples in this respect:

- Disclosure of various important information in the annual report, as per best practices, like ratios and trends,
graphs, commentary, analysis, etc.

- Health, Safety and Environment strategies for the safety of employees and equipment.

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd




- High standards of management and reporting practices, as evident from the receiving of numerous awards
consistently from ICAP/ICMAP, MAP, etfc.

DIVERSITY POLICY

AGIL strives for being an equal opportunity employer, free from any discrimination whatsoever due to gender,
cast, creed, religion, ethnicity, colour, or the like. The Company is committed to merit-based environment
where there is fair and equal treatment of employees. In all aspects of human resources management,
short-listing of candidates for hiring through 1o their selection, compensation and benefits - monetary and
otherwise, promotions and increments, transfers, social and recreational activities, professional grooming,
ferminations, etc., our endeavor is to remain non-discriminate and free of any bias. Accordingly, in every
aspect employees are tfreated according to their abilities fo meet job requirements and all decisions are free
from any form of discrimination.

RELATED PARTIES

Disclosures relating to related parties have been provided in financial statements' section of this annual
report, in accordance with applicable approved accounting and reporting standards. The said disclosures
include name, basis of relationship and percentage of shareholding of related parties including associated
companies with whom the Company had entered info transactions or have arrangements / agreements in
place. Related party fransactions have also been disclosed in the financial statements appropriately along
with other related parties related disclosures.

The Company has a policy of compliance with corporate law and regulations regarding related party
fransactions. Al related party transactions along with relevant information were placed before audit
committees for review quarterly. After review by the Committee, the transactions were considered and
approved by the Board keeping in view the recommendations made by the Committee. Directors are also
required to disclose their inferest, if any, in accordance with requirements of corporate law and regulations.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY TOWARDS THE PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Board of Directors, Audit Committee and the management have been committed to keep the
Company in compliance with accounting and reporting framework as applicable under corporate law. The
management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of financial statements as per applicable
accounting and reporting standards and for related internal controls.

WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The Company has adopted a whistle blowing culture to detect and deter wrongdoing in preparing and
implementing accurate and complete financial reports and records as well as the internal controls essential
to support its financial and accounting system and operations. Violation of matters referred to in the Code of
Conduct signed by all the employees may also be reported. The establishment of whistle blowing structure
also augments the Company’'s ability to detect potential fraud, providing another level of comfort and
assurance to the stakeholders.

The policy provides a mechanism for employees to report possible wrongdoings to the Company Secretary
without fear of reprisal or discrimination. Every report case is considered and investigated. The whole process
is looked after by the Audit Committee.

No reportable cases of whistle blowing were raised during 2018.
The Company also has a policy on “Suggestion System”, encouraging all employees 1o make suggestions.
These are discussed and employees are often rewarded for their input.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company ensures that all shareholders are treated fairly and equitably. The Company is committed o
ensuring that all shareholders have access to clear, reliable and meaningful information. The Company
regularly communicates major developments in business operations to the stock exchange, SECP, press
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releases, circular to shareholders and placement of information on Company’ website. The Company also
encourages shareholder participation at the general meetings of the shareholders.

All shareholders are invited to participate in the Company’s general meeting in person or through proxy. The
Chairman delivers a short presentation at each AGM to shareholders to update them on performance of the
Company. Every matter requiring approval is proposed as a separate resolution. Shareholders present are
given an opportunity to clarify or direct questions on issues pertaining to the proposed resolution. The Board is
in attendance to address these queries and obtain feedback from shareholders. External auditors are also
present as required by law.

Issue raised at last AGM:
The Company’'s AGM was held on April 25, 2018. The following were approved by the shareholders:

e Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017;
¢ Declaration of final cash dividend @ Rs. 25 per share; and

e Appointment of M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co. as external auditors.

For above-stated shareholders' approvals, related implementation was timely completed by the Company.
During the AGM held on April 25, 2018 the shareholders asked general queries which were appropriately
responded by directors present in the meeting. However, no significant matter was raised.

Presence of the chairman of the audit committee at AGM:

Chairman of the audit committee was also present at the AGM of the Company held on April 25, 2018 to
answer any questions asked on the audit committee's activities and matters within the scope of the audit
committee's responsibilities.

Encouraging minority shareholders to attend general meetings:

The Company's management aims to encourage minority shareholders to aftend general meetings.
Accordingly, the Company send notice of its general meetings to all shareholders in addition to these notice
being published in Urdu and English newspapers.

UNDERSTANDING OF THE VIEWS OF MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS BY THE DIRECTORS INCLUDING NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS:

AGITL is owned to the extent of 93% by two foreign shareholders namely Al-Futtaim Industries company LLC
and CNH Global N.V. At the fime of induction of each of the new director, the Company carries out
orientation in respect of expectation and views of major shareholders.

INVESTOR RELATIONS POLICY AND GRIEVANCE PROGRAMME

The Company is committed to maintain highest standards of corporate transparency and disclosure and
believes that it should provide regular, effective and fair communication with its shareholders. An investor
relation programme has been put in place to provide clear, timely and fair disclosure of information about
the Company’s business development and performance.

Shareholders are also welcome 1o seek any information that they may require by contacting the Company
Secretary at the Head Office — Telephone Number 021-35318901-5. Information / complaints may also be
sent in writing or through email. All efforts are made to provide the required information / resolve their
complaints on priority basis.

POLICY OF SAFETY OF RECORDS

The Company places emphasis on safety and storage of its financial and other records. The Company
ensures that all data and records are retained to meet legal, administrative and operational requirements.
No loss or breach of confidential data was reported during 2018.
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BUSINESS CONTINUITY /DISASTER RECOVERY PLAN AND REVIEW BY THE BOARD
The Company places paramount importance on business continuity / disaster recovery.

The following measures are in place to ensure smooth restoration of key operations:

* Application and data back-ups are maintained at different sites to ensure maximum security. In case of
failure of primary server, the back-up server with the same configuration is also available.

*  Comprehensive fire prevention system has been put in place through mechanical installations as well as
frequent fire drills.

* Adequate insurance arrangements have been made to mitigate business risks.

e Preventive maintenance programme coupled with fraining is carried out infermittently fo minimize
business disruptions.

e 24 hours security af the plant, head office and staff town has been provided.
The Board is apprised relating to disaster recovery strategies and mitigating plans.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GOVERNANCE

Information Management and Information Technology is built info AGTL's strategy. IT system plays an
important role in supporting AGTL's current operations and its new initiatives. Our ERP system continues to
integrate all function across the Company, facilitating greater efficiency and effectiveness of all processes
and confrols.

ANALYST BRIEFING:

As required under PSX regulations, the Company will be arranging in this year a corporate briefing session for
the analyst community.
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pwc AF-FERGUSON&CO,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
AL-GHAZI TRACTORS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained In Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance} Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Al-Ghazi Tractors
Limited (tha Company) for the year ended Decamber 31, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of
regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Reguiations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our respensibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if Il does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of vatious documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As 3 part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are nol required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statemant en Internal control
covers 2l fisks and controls or lo form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedurss and risks,

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommeandation
of the Audit Committes, place before the Board of Directors for therr review and approval, its related party
ransactions and alsp ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act
2017, We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement o the extent of the approval
of the related party iransactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.
We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of
related parties and that whether the related parly transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or
noL

Based on our review, nothing kas come 10 our allention which causes us to believa that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with

the requirements contained in the Regulations as apolicable to the Company for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2018,

Karachi
Dated: March 6, 2018

| AL F. FERGUSON & CO., Churtered Acomuntants, o member firm of the PucC netusirk

State Life Building No. 1-C, LI Chundrigar Roed, P.O. Box ¢716, Karachi-r4oa0, Pakistan
Tel: +02 (71) 32426682-6/39426711-5; Fax! «02 (21) 32415007/ 32427038,/ 32424740; <, pitoe.com/ pk>

s KARACHI » LAHORE » ISLAMABAD

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd




“Statement of Compliance

with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Goveronce)
Regulo’nons 2017
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,2017

For the year ended December 31, 2018

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors is eight as per the following:
a. Male: 8
b. Female: -

2. The composition of board is as follows:

a) Independent Director Mr. M. Ali Qaiyum

o) Non-Executive Directors Mr. Charles Leonard Hunt
Mr. Colin William Cordery
Mr. Vincent De Lassagne
Mr. Damiano Cretarola
Mr. Mark Brinn

c) Executive Directors Mr. Mohammad Shahid Hussain
Mr. Kashif Lawai

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where
applicable).

4. The company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which
they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All'the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

8. The board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. All the Directors on the Board are fully conversant with their duties and responsibilities as directors of
corporate bodies. Further, the Company is compliant with the requirement that at least half of the
directors on its Board have certification under Directors’ Training Program.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of
the Regulations.

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.
12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

- Mr. M. Ali. Qaiyum, Chairman

- Mr. Colin William Cordery
- Mr. Damiano Cretarola

62 Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd




13.

14.

HR and Remuneration Committee
- Mr. M. Ali. Qaiyum, Chairman

- Mr. Colin William Cordery

- Mr. Vincent De Lassagne

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committees was as follows:

Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended 31
December 2018

HR and Remuneration Two meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2018
Committee

15.

16.

17.

18.

The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan,
that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the
company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

CHARLES LEONARD HUNT
Chairman

Karachi: February 11, 2019
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Internal Audit

The Company has its own in-house Internal Audit Department which is headed by a qualified Chartered
Accountant. Internal Audit reports directly 1o the Chairman of the Audit Committee on audit matters and
administratively to the CEO. Using risk based audit methodology Internal Audit plans its assignments every
quarter, which is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

The key role of the Internal Audit is to assist the Audit Committee 1o provide reasonable assurance that the
Company is maintaining an adequate system of internal controls by periodic reviews of material controls and
procedures. A comprehensive Intemnal Audit report is presented to the Audit Committee at each meeting for
discussion.

The Board has been kept informed of the Audit Committee’s review of internal audit reports and the
management controls in place and is safisfied with the adequacy of the Company’s internal controls.

The Audit Committee ensures that the internal audit function has adequate resources and appropriate

standing within the Company. On an ongoing basis, it assesses the effectiveness of the internal auditors, such
as its scope of work and quality of audit reports.

N\
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Report of the Audit Committee

Composition

The Committee is appointed by the Board and at the year-end comprised of three Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. M. Ali Qaiyum — Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Mr. Colin Wiliam Cordery

Mr. Damiano Cretarola

The current Chairman of the Committee, Mr. M. Ali Qaiyum, an independent Non-Executive Director is a
Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of England and Wales (ICAEW). The profile of members is given on pages 20 to 22,

The Board Secretary functions as the Secretary 1o the Committee.

Charter of the Committee

The terms of reference of the Committee are clearly defined in the Charter of the Committee, salient
features of which are stated below:

* To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of external auditors;

* To review quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements;

* To review the internal control systems and internal audit function;

* To monitor compliance of statutory requirements.

Meeting during 2018

The Audit Committee met four times during the year. The attendance of the members atf these meetings is
stated in the table on page 54 of the annual report. The Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Internal Auditor
affended all meetings. The external auditor affends meetings when maitters pertaining to their functions
come up for consideration and aftended two meetings during the year.

Role of the Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board to effectively carry out its supervisory oversight responsibilities on finan-
cial reporting and compliance, internal controls and risks, intfernal and external audit functions of the Compa-

ny. The Committee ensured compliance with its terms of reference.

The Committee has concluded its annual review of the operations of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2018 and reports that:

*  The Committee reviewed and approved the quarterly and annual financial statements of the Company
and recommended them for approval of the Board;

* Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied and all applicable accounting

standards were followed in preparation of the financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2018, which present fairly the state of affairs, results of operations, profits, cash flows, and changes in
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equity of the Company;

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have reviewed the financial statements of the
Company. They acknowledge their responsibility for true and fair presentation of the financial statements,
accuracy of reporting and compliance with regulations and applicable accounting standards;

Review process of financial statements by the audit committee also include detailed consideration of
related matters and issues which were dealt in accordance with applicable accounting and reporting
standards. The fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 became applicable for the first time to 2018
financial statements and, accordingly, it was complied with in preparation and presentation of the
financial statements. Contents of the 2018 External Audit Report have changed as compared to that of
previous year in accordance with the Auditors (Reporting Obligations) Regulations, 2018; the auditors have
issued unmodified audit reports in respect of the said 2018 financial statements:

Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;
Proper, accurate and adequate accounting records have been maintained by the Company;

The Company’s system of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for
effectiveness and adequacy.

The Company has a proper approach in place for risk management whereby identification and
mitigation of relevant risks take place. Details regarding risk identified by the Company and mitigating
strategies are included in respective section of this annual report and summary is mentioned in the
directors’ report. The audit committee has reviewed this information;

The Audit Committee has reviewed and approved all related party fransactions;

The Committee has reviewed arrangements for staff and management for reporting to the Committee
concerns, if any, about improprieties in financial and other matters, and remedial and mitigating
measures. No cases of complaints regarding accounting, infernal accounting controls or audit matters,
or whistle blowing were received by the Committee;

Closed periods were duly determined and announced by the Company, precluding the directors and
executives (as defined by the Board to be an employee drawing a basic salary of Rs. 1,200,000 and
above in a financial year) from dealing in the shares of the Company, prior to each Board meeting
involving announcement of interim / final results, distribution 1o shareholders or any other business decision
which could materially affect the share price.

The Company’s 2018 Annual Report is properly structured to provide all necessary information in detail yet
in a lucid way. Not only it gives financial information like state of affairs and financial performance as per
applicable accounting framework, it also enlightens through financial analysis in easy to comprehend
style. Besides the core financial information, it also covers all other necessary domains like background
details about company and its directors, comprehensive management reviews and future prospects,
stakeholders information and corporate governance.

Internal Audit

The Board has effectively implemented the internal control framework through the Chief Internal Auditor
who is a qualified Chartered Accountant.
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The Internal Auditor reviews the risks and control processes. It carries out reviews in accordance with the
internal audit plan approved by the Committee.,

The internal audit function has direct access to the Committee. The Committee reviews the findings and
observation of the internal audit and provides appropriate guidance.

The Committee met with the internal audit in absence of the management.

External Audit

The statutory auditors of the Company, A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, have completed
their audit assignment of the Company’s financial statements and the statement of compliance with the
Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended December 31, 2018 and shall retire on the
conclusion of the 36th Annual General Meeting;

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed audit observations with the external auditors. A meeting
was also held with the external auditors in absence of the management;

The external auditors have direct access to the Audit Committee and internal audit department, hereby
ensuring the effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the audit process;

The performance, cost and independence of the external auditors is reviewed annually by the Audit
Committee. Being eligible for reappointment under the listing regulations, the Committee has
recommended to the Board the reappointment of A.F. Ferguson and Co., Chartered Accountants for the
year 2019. A resolution to this effect has been proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Audit Committee

The Committee views that it discharged its responsibilities as per its terms of reference. A separate
mechanism is in place for annual evaluation of members of the Board of Directors and its Committees.

It

.

M. Ali Qaiyum
Chairman, Audit Committee
February 11, 2019
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Human Resource Management (HRM)

AGTL recognizes that motivated and professional employees are an essential factor for maintaining
competitiveness and for creation of shareholder value and customer satisfaction.

The Company is committed to providing equal opportunities to all its employees, both on the job and in their
career advancement. All aspect of employment, such as recruitment, fraining, compensation,
promotion and fransfer are free from any form of discrimination.

Performance appraisal is one of the important components of HRM. The performance management system
at AGTL continues to be an essential tool to provide regular feedback to align employee performance with
business strateqy.

SUCCESSION PLANNING

Succession Planning is a proactive approach to managing talent as it involves identification of high potential
employees for anticipated future needs and the tailored development of these people so that there is a
talent pool or leadership pipeline available 1o meet AGTL's demands as they arise. AGTL has formulated a
comprehensive succession plan for all key positions. Succession Planning is formally addressed by the Board
of Directors.

HARASSMENT

AGTL has a harassment policy in place and is in compliance with the Protection Against Harassment of
Women at Workplace, Act 2010. No instances of harassment were reported during the year 2018.
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Report of the Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee

Composition

The HR&R Committee appointed by and responsible 1o the Board comprises of three Non-Executive Directors
presently:

Mr. M. A. Qaiyum — Chairman — Independent Director

Mr. Colin William Cordery

Mr. Vincent DelLassagne

The Board Secretary functions as the Secretary 1o the Committee.
Salient terms of reference

1. Recommend human resource management policies to the Board;

2. Recommend fo the Board the selection, evaluation, compensation (including retirement benefits) of
CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit;

3. Recommend to the Board the selection, evaluation, compensation (including retirement benefits) and
succession planning of the CEO;

4. Consideratfion and approval on the recommendations of CEO on such matters for key management
positions who report directly to CEO; and

5. Assess periodically the Board’s performance and the performance of the Committees of the Board.
Meetings during 2018

The Committee met two times during the year 2018. The aftendance of the members at these meetings is
stated in the table on page 54 of the annual report.

It

.

M. Ali Qaiyum
Chairman, Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
February 11, 2019
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Every aspect of management relies heavily on
information to thrive. Companies use information to
set strategies and accomplish business objectives.
AGITL is no exception and gives high importance to
MIS. It is the lifeblood of the business and ensures
that there are systems and infrastructures built to
meet the demands of business and individuals.

The hardware in use at AGIL includes: IBM RISC
Servers, CISCO Routers, 3COM and CISCO Switches
and IBM/HP Printers. Al-Ghazi Tractors also has its
website  www.alghazitractors.com to  facilitate
business and business partners by providing detailed
information about organization’s Vision, Mission,
Management,  Products,  Financial ~ Reports,
Operations and Human Resources.

Enterprise Resource Planing

AGIL places heavy reliance on its Enterprise
Resource Planning System (BaaN), which is fully
infegrated incorporating Sales and  Distribution,
Material Requirement Planning (MRP), Material
anagement, Manufacturing, Inventory and Finance.
In house developed applications for payroll,
warranty stock / claims, and noncomponent
purchases have been added to the system. This
application is implemented across AGTL and a high
speed communication infrastructure is in place.

AGIL offices in Lahore, Multan & Dera Ghazi Khan
are connected to Head Office Karachi, through a
video Conferencing facility resulting in efficient and
fast communication among all departments to
achieve the Company’s objectives.

Disaster Recovery Planing

The Company gives high importance to Disaster
recovery and a Disaster Recovery Plan is in place,
which ensures minimum down- time, in case of a
major disaster. Most importantly, MIS also holds the
function of backing up vital data guaranteeing that
a business isn't at risk of losing vital information.
Application and data back-ups are maintained at
different sites 1o ensure maximum security. Back-up
hardware is also available in case of failure of the
main server.

Safety and Security of IT Record

In order to safeguard data integrity, a detailed
policy on IT Security is in place. The objective is to
ensure that highest level of security is provided to the
system. Access controls are rigidly monitored based
on job descriptions. Regular training on I.T. security is
given to the employees to create awareness and
enhance the importance of I.T. Security. Software/
hardware firewalls have also been installed to block
unwanted traffic and hacking.




Risks and
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Risks and Opporfunities

Risks

The Company recognizes the fact that effective risk management is critical to continued profitability and
long-term sustainability of business. Like all businesses, the Company is equally affected by, and must
manage, risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability to deliver the business strategy.

While the risks can be numerous, the principle risks faced by the Company in 2018 and valid as of the date
of this report’s publication and as identified by the Board, are described below along with the corresponding
mitigating actions and changes in the risk level during the year.

F;ilsmg}g’g{ Likelihood Risk Description Mitigation Strategy

Financial Capital (External Source)

Exchange High/ High High It becomes challenging for The Company’s product has
Rate the Company to compete in | around 92% local
Fluctuation the market due to frequent components, thus reducing
fluctuation of PKR parity the dependency on imported
against USD. material and hence reducing
negative consequences
resulting from exchange rate
fluctuations.
Inability to Moderate/ Moderate Raw material cost constitutes | As part of the Company’s
source raw Moderate a substantial part of the vendor succession planning,
material & overall cost of production of alternate vendors are
rising cost of the Company. continuously explored to cope
raw material with increase in raw material
Suppliers increase the cost of prices.
products supplied in view of
economic scenarios Moreover, the Company has
including rupee devaluation strategic relationships with key
and rising costs of raw material suppliers which
international fuel prices. benefit the company in price
negofiation and prompt
material delivery.
For major raw material
components, orders are split
among vendors for reducing
reliance on single vendor.
Human Capital (Intfernal Source)
High Moderate/ Moderate Key employees and workers The Company believes in the
Employee Moderate may leave the Company importance of having the right
furnover causing lack of competent people with the requisite
workforce, qualification, skills and
expertise to achieve its
strategic business plans. The
Company has in place
comprehensive human
resource policies and
procedures for recruitment,
compensation and staff
development and
management succession.
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F;ilsrl%:ggg'l[ Likelihood Risk Description Mitigation Strategy

Manufactured Capital (External Source)

Information
system
failure risk

Low/ Low

Low

Loss of Company data and
theft of sensitive information

A comprehensive disaster
recovery policy is in place
and addresses the underlying
risk. The Company maintains
back-up servers to recover
data in case of any disaster.
Further, the Company has
well-established disaster
recovery plan and data
backup to cope with any
unwarranted event.

Natural
Catastrophe

Low/ Low

Low

Destruction of production

facility due to natural disaster.

The Company has
comprehensive insurance
cover in case of any
catastrophic event. The
Company has taken info
consideration every possible
aspect of safety measures to
preserve the factory building
and plant.

Business
Continuity
Risk

Low/ Low

Low

The Company may be
unable or constrained to
continue business.

The Company recognizes that
quick recovery and
resumption of business
operations after a disruption
are critical to minimizing
financial, operational and
reputational impact. To
mitigate these risks, the
Company has in place a
Business Continuity Plan, which
complements its ERP
framework.
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Opportunities

The Company is committed to investing in new projects and increasing the productivity of existing ones for
fueling future growth. The Company has strengthened the basis for further growth in the coming years by
making strafegic investments to modernize and improve existing businesses processes while at the same time
developing innovative ideas to support achievement of Company’s stated vision.

Few opportunity descriptions are analyzed below:

Opportunity Opportunity Description

: St[ategy to :
Capitalize Opportunity

High power
fractor
market

Manufactured
Capital

Infernal

The market contains a
significant potential for high
power fractors.

Under guidance of CNHi
experts a state of the art plant
equipped with advanced
technology for premium high
power tractors production is in
the planning stage.

Modernization
of AGTL plant

Manufactured
Capital

External

Most modern and
state-of-the-art machinery for
production of high quality
fractors.

The Company is in continuous
process fo upgrade the plant
with efficient mmachinery which
will enable the company to
operate with the minimum
cost of production, thereby
offering its customers high
quality fractors in cheap price.
Quality Assurance lab and
Store sheds are some major
projects under this strategy.

Diversification

Manufactured
Capital

Internal

Potential markets for lube oil
and spare parts exist,

The Company is inclined to
diversify in the related fields
and is committed to search
all possible avenues to
maximize the pace of growth
of the Company and
Shareholders wealth.

Efficiency af
work place by
employees

Human
Capital

External

Provide congenial work
environment where
employee feels motivated
and works for the betterment
of the Company.

Provide effective environment
without excessive work
pressure. Continuous fraining
and development of
employees. Benefit aligned
with efficient and effective
work and feam
management.
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BOD’s Commitment to Risk Mitigation
As a business redlity, the Company is susceptible to various risks. However, through comprehensive planning
and business understanding, the Board of Directors continues to identify and mitigate actual, potential and

perceived risks.

The Board of Directors have carefully carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Company, including those that would threaten the business model, future performance and solvency of the
Company while establishing and maintaining a control framework comprising clear structures, authority limits

and accountabilities, well implemented policies and procedures and budgeting for review processes.

Further, it is confirmed that no defaults in payments of any debts were made and that the Company has
adequate capital structure. Any deficiencies in the capital structure identified are aggressively addressed to

mitigate accordingly.
Materiality Approach

Determination of materiality levels other than those provided under the regulations, is judgmental and varies
between organizations. In general, matters are considered 1o be material if, individually or in aggregate, they
are expected to significantly affect the performance and profitability of the Company. Materiality levels are

reviewed periodically and are appropriately updated.

Powers of the Board of Directors and the Management of the Company are in compliance with the
Companies Act, 2017, the Code of Corporate Governance, the Articles of Association of the Company and

guidelines and framewaorks issued by professional bodies and best practices.

The Board powers include approvals for capital expenditure, disposal of fixed assets, annual business plans,
policy formulation, risk management, human resource management, donations, matters relating to health,

safety and the environment, and other matters required by law, or internal policies.

Authorizations for transactions and delegation of powers have also been defined clearly and carried out

through formalized processes keeping in view defined materiality levels.
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Strategic Objectives

The ultimate objective is fo ensure achievement of the overall corporate and strategic objectives by
becoming the leading Company in the tractor industry, continuously improving our operations and hence
enhancing profitability and return to shareholders.

Short Term Objective
Our short-ferm objective is change in perception through continuous product quality and achievement of
highest level of customer satisfaction.

Medium Term Objective
Our medium term objective is to contfinuously scale up our market share through improved customer
engagement.

Long Term Obijective
Long term objective is to demonstrate a comprehensive product range which interest all the needs of
farmers.

Strategies in Place

To achieve our objectives, the management strategically strives to enhance stakeholders' value and
customer satisfaction. The shareholders’ value is maximized through refurn on investment, which
management believes can be achieved through revenue maximization and cost control measures.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and Marketing targets and budgets are aggressively set-forth by management to achieve highest
possible retumns. The targets are backed by seriously thought-out strategies coupled with ownership of all
stakeholders and management’'s commitment to ensure achievement of the same. Major strategies devised
o ensure achievement of fargets are:

* Dedlers' revamping, performance review and their profitability
* Development of Market Infelligence tools for informed decision making
* Enhanced engagement with dealers for quality feedback

Quality Initiative
AGITL is an ISO certified company since 1994, The company has paramount focus on quality of its fractors
and a road map to achieving this objective, the company has placed several quality control strategies.

The company invests regularly in Product Quality Development as number of improvements are regularly
incorporated in the tractors parts and processes.

For achievement of this objective a number of initiatives were infroduced including construction of Quality
Assurance lab, construction of store shed and a comprehensive coordinated activity was launched in
collaboration with principal CNH to add value to the production processes.

Collaboration with CNHi also included action plans and trainings and exposure of AGITL staff at CNHi facilities
to improve quality.

After Sales Services

Exceptional after sales service forms part of the Company’s long enduring strategy. The Company puts strong
focus on After Sales Service which is the basis of customer's satisfaction. Following strategies were introduced
to achieve the After Sales Services objectives:

Free Service Camps

Organizing Engineer’s Club Convention
Set up of Centralized Call Center
Customer Desk Facility

Expansion of Workshops in all regions

Cost Management
With effective cost contfrol and efficient energy management the company focuses 1o keep the variable cost
down adding to overall profitability.

To reduce Company’s exposure and vulnerability, linked with ram material cost, the Company is constantly
focusing on consolidation, elevation, and enhanced engagement with the component vendors to bring
economies of scale while improving Company’s profitability.
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Resource Allocation Plan

Significant resources of the Company comprise of, but not limited to, human, financial and technological
resources. We hire professional associates and technical experts who contfinuously strive to ensure that our
production and control processes and systems are working efficiently and effectively and are constantly
being modemized.

Further, financial resources are managed effectively through optimized credit control and efficient freasury
management, focusing on cash flow forecasting.

Our Strategy
AGIL is committed to increase revenue and it streams to optimize shareholders” wealth and offer our best
efforts to provide optimal value fo all our stakeholders for their engagement with the Company.

Human Capital

The Company's most important asset is its human capital. The Company has in place comprehensive
human resource policies and procedures for recruitment, compensation, staff development and
management succession.

Manufactured Capital
AGITL plant manufactures New Holland (Fiat) tractors in technical collaboration with CNHI - Case New Holland,
the number one manufacturer of agricultural fractors in the world.

AGITL plant is an icon of engineering dynamics operating on high efficiency. With impregnable Quality Control
and Quality Assurance practices, quality improvement systems exist at every level. The Company is
committed to improve product quality at both incoming and assembly stages.

Financial Capital
The Company currently has a strong financial base with capital structure comprised of Rs.289.8 million share
capital representing 57.9 million ordinary shares of Rs.5/- each with market capitalization of over 31 billion.

Current short-term finance of the Company stands atf Rs.3.9 billion. However, the Company believes that with
the release on sale tax refund from government authorities will help reduce short-term finance.

The Company has also allocated sizeable amount for marketing purposes. The budget is being provided to
all department heads to further set their targets of resource allocation in line with the Company’s objectives
for effective usage of funds so allocated.

Intellectual Capital
Information Management and Information Technology is built into AGTL's strategy. IT system plays an
important role in supporting AGTL's current operations and its new initiatives.

Our ERP system continues to integrate all function across the Company, facilitating greater efficiency and
effectiveness of all processes and controls.

Social and relationship capital

AGITL values the stake holders, customers, employees and the investors. The management works to ensure
that all supply chain associates, dedlers, shareholders and employees share in the company’s growth and
prosperity. We invest in a series of initiatives that enhance collaboration and ongoing dialogue with our
customers and vendors. We also contribute to the sustainable growth of our communities by offering job for
local skilled and unskilled manpower.
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Significant Changes in Objectives and Strategies from Previous Period

Although objectives of the Company remained same as compared 1o previous period but several new
strategies were devised during the year 2018 as highlighted above.

Critical Performance Indicators
Following are some of the critical performance indicators against stated objectives of the Company;

Quality product at the lowest price;

Efficiency and effectiveness of each production process;
Creating value for the shareholders;

Employee retention and satisfaction;

Compliance with laws and regulations;

Consistent corporate achievements and excellence;
Development of local community

The Company believes that these indicators will contfinue to be relevant in the future as well.

Liquidity Analysis and Strategies to Overcome Liquidity Problems

The management of the Company has years of experience in liquidity management. Management always
strives 1o maintain a strong liquidity position to ensure availability of sufficient working capital besides
identification and mitigation of cash flow risks.

Revenue receipts from sales are managed through optimized control of customer credit, in addition to
securing advance customer orders and cash sales. Regular forecasting of cash flows and aging analysis are
also carried out to maintain an optimum working capital cycle.

The aggregate net working capital stood at Rs. 651 million at the close of Dec 31, 2018.

Significant Plans and Decisions

The Company believes in continuous corporate restructuring according to the market norms to achieve its
objectives. However, major business expansions and discontinuance of operations were neither performed
nor planned.
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Highlights of Various Sustainability

Aspects of AGTL

AGITL, with its plant located in Dera Ghazi Khan is a
perfect example of Sustainability & Corporate Social
Responsibility. The plant, the staff town, and the allied
hub of activities that gravitate around AGTL have
fransformed the social fabric of the entire region.
What began by pitching our tents in the parch desert
has confributed to  sustained  economic
development of the entire community and the
society af large. Offering ample employment
opportunities, a staff town built adjacent to the
manufacturing plant full of amenities such as
dispensary, fair price shop, sports club etc. The plant
with a capacity to produce 30,000 tfractors per
annum in a single shift is a vibrant business center
which has created thousands of jobs by way of
fransportation activities, workshops, vendor shops
and a host of other developments. The Company
has directly contributed to human values and the
quality of life of the whole region.

REVERSE OSMOSIS PLANT

Reverse Osmosis plant has been recently installed in
DGK which would improve the machinery life of
different fractor manufacturing processes as well as
working efficiency of tractor components. Drinking
water points from RO plant have also been provided
around the plant premises where filtered drinking
water is available for residents of the surroundings.

ENERGY SAVING MEASURES

Considering the energy crisis being faced by the
country and in an effort o reducing environmental
impact, the Company has installed energy efficient

roof tops in the plant, thus reducing the
consumption of electricity with savings in energy
cost. Further, burners in paint shops and tractor body
line have been automated to ensure tfemperature
control. The Company has also converted burners
fromm HSD fuel to LDO fuel. This has resulted in fuel
savings, thus reducing environmental impact and
improving financial efficiency.

Other energy saving methods used includes
replacement of tube lights with energy efficient LED
lights and installation of flow meters on bumers o
regulate fuel consumption.

Conventional air conditioning units have been

replaced with energy saving units which use
environment friendly gas.

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

RE-USE AND RE-CYCLING

In addition to the above, different methods are used
to reduce waste. The principle is: Reduce, Re-use
and Re-cycle.

* Under an agreement with suppliers, components
rejected on line are returned. These include
defective castings, forgings, sheet metals, wires,
metal scraps, paper board cartons, wood,
plastic parts, PVC parts, etc. These are all
materials which are recycled and reprocessed
into new materials. These materials are collected
separately from general waste using dedicated
places in the factory.

* The assembly process at AGIL is such that no
waste is produced through industrial metabolism.

*  Well-designed septic tanks have been built in the
factory to take care of the water that is used for
washing the components and in the paint shops.
These pre-treat the waste water before it enters
the disposal areas where natural processes are
expected to take care of the final freatment.
Solids settle to the bottom of the tanks and form
a layer of sludge which is removed once it gets
filled — in several years. The sludge is auctioned.

* Qils refuse from testing of engines are also sold
and recycled for use as furnace oil.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MEASURES

AGITL is committed to fransforming our operations
towards reducing the environmental impact and
protection of environment. A modern state of the art
Effluent Treatment Plant is functional which treafs
wasste water from the factory for useful utilization in
Plantation. All other effluents of smoke, noise, health
and safety fully meet National Environmental Quality
Standards (NEQS).

PAPERLESS ENVIRONMENT

Recognizing the importance of a paperless
environment, efforts are made to maximize the use
of digital storage and communication methods.
Employees are also encouraged to reduce print
jobs and to reuse paper.

PLANTATION

Each year we add 1o the plantation at the AGTL Plant
and staff town in DGK. In 2018, over 1000 plants
were planted adding to the 3000+ frees which have
been planted over the last many years. AGTL is also
participating in the government led Clean and
Green Pakistan drive.  All employees and dignitaries
visiting plant are also encouraged to plant a free.

FUEL EFFICIENCY

To align our environmental strategy with  our
products, the Company has improved the design of
cylinder head and Fuel Injection Pumps used in its
fractors to ensure fuel efficiency and minimize smoke.




HEALTH AND SAFETY

From production of products which can be used
‘safely’ by the customers, Health and Safety Policy
covers an action plan for occupational safety,
occupational illiness, conforming to labour laws for
physical and psychological health of all employees,
friendly working hours, provision of comprehensive
insurance to all, ambulaonce service, dispensary
service, provision of clean water through filtration
plants, recreation facilities ot the staff town,
firefighting, demarcation of emergency exits and
twenty four hours security for the plant and residents
of the staff town.

Polio workers also visited the AGIL staff fown to
provide polio drops to under age children’s.

A Dengue awareness programme has been
lounched. Employees were informed of the
preventive measures against dengue virus and
malaria fever. Pamphlets and charts have been
displayed throughout the plant and staff town.
Dengue spray was also aranged through Health
Department DGK.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

AGTL has contributed Rs. 1.35 bilion tfowards the
national exchequer on account of government
levies and taxes.

LABOUR / MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

The management and labour of AGTL enjoy cordial
relations. Weekly meetings are held with Collective
Bargaining Agent (CBA) to provide them with the
opportunity for re-dress of workers’ job related

Ultimate Tensile Strength Test on UTS
testing machine;

Material Hardness test on
Hardness testing machine;

Some of the
modern quality
control methods

adopted by the
Company are as
follows:

grievances and 1o resolve the issues highlighted.
AGITL is an equal opportunity employer,

EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL PERSONS
AGIL utilizes the services of special persons for its
production operations at DGK.

CONSUMER PROTECTION MEASURES

AGTL's uncompromising commitment is to provide
world-class fractors at the lowest price, o satisfy
customers on consistent basis. The manufacturing
plant is an advanced unit which has a capacity to
produce 30,000 tractors per annum in a single shift.
The plant operates on high efficiency with negligible
waste. Our fractors are manufactured  from
non-hazardous material. We have discarded the use
of all lead based paints. All manufacturing materials
are procured from reputable suppliers and conform
to our quality standards. All tfractors are tested before
delivery. Customer rights and privacy is important to
AGTL. No complaints were received regarding
breach of customer privacy. The Company offers
two free after sales service for its tractors. Warranty
period is 14 months or 1200 hours, whichever comes
first,

BUSINESS ETHICS AND ANTI-CORRUPTION MEASURES
The Company actively participates in the fight
against all forms of corruption, fully complying with
principles of fairess, fransparency and integrity. To
ensure that highest standards are met,
anti-corruption statement has been included in the
code of ethics signed by all the directors and
employees. A whistle blowing policy is also in palace
to detect and deter misconduct. The Company also
has a well documented harassment policy.

QUALITY ASSURANCE

With disciplined focus on all quality management
systems, AGIL is commifted to remain af par with
pbest international practices, quality standards,
performance requirements, and product
specifications of CNHI. Quality is monitored at every
level of production.

Destructive test of various
components to confirm material;

The Company has invested for improvement of quality of AGTL's products through construction of quality lab
while fraining of mechanics, setting up of call center for efficient customer support and new modern paint
shop are also part of the project.
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Certifications for Best Practices

|~¢ERTIFICATE e

:

Management System as per
EN ISO 9001 : 2015

In mocosdnnce wilh TOV AUGTRIE piucedunes. 1 s hesby cetiied e

AL-GHAZI TRACTORS LIMITED
10" Kmn, Sakhi Sarwar Road

0.G. KHAN, PAKISTAN
Apgled @ Cosafity Managament Sunjem in ine win e sbose Sanoard tor B Kowng S

PRODUCTION OF FIAT AND NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR FROM CUSTOMERS
SUPPLIED COMPONENTS.

Cantfcstn nmuc}n:up 1013451 e s

Labdm, ZEA6dH-11

This ewriificaliin was corcluctas |1 acconsance il TUY ALUSTRY suditeg and cormficatan i
Pesedurne and i wfpect 12 rRQUIn BUNETRNCE BLAJIR '

T ALIT TR FEELLAS
43, Moo Aes |
143 43 Athwes, Crees 1
i Lipauminghisie o !
|
@ o .
= i E
—— e bR S G0 —E—
WUTRIT i —_—

Every year the company is audited for upkeep of its activities.
Documentation is a pre-requisite for this certification.
ISO certification is now valid upto 2021.
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Human rights
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1. Support and respedt the protectian of internationally
proclaimed buman rights.

2, frsure that they are not complict in human rights abuses.

e —— 3

1. Upheld leedam of association and the effective recognition
of Ihe right 1 coliective bavgaining. '

L the elimination of all lorms ol forved and compulsary labou,
5 Ihe eftective abolition of child lshour.

6. thiminate discrimination in respect of employment and occupatinn.

7. Suppoil a precsutionaty approath 1o environmental challenges.

£ Undertake initialives to promote greater environmental
responsibility. '

9. Entourage the development and diffusion of envirenmentally
friendly technolonies.
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AGTL was the founding member of the UN “"Global Compact” initiative when
it was launched in December 2005.

The Company adheres 1o all the principles of the Global Compact with
reference to Human Rights, Labour, Environment and Ethical practices.
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Highlights of
Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Framework establishes strategic and consistent approach for our
investments. We focus on fostering environmental value as well as improving the living standards and quality
of life of the communities we work with. In line with the Mission of creating mutually beneficial relationships
between the Company, stakeholders and the community, the Company has structured its CSR framework to
achieve this objective, which covers the following aspects:

* Sound corporate activities * Provision of valuable goods and services for society
e Respect for human beings * Protection of environment
* Responsibility to society as a corporate citizen ¢ Transparent operating activities

NATIONAL CAUSE DONATIONS
As a service to the community, a tractor has been donated to District Government Dera Ghazi Khan for
beautification and up-keep of parks and horticulture activities.

INVESTMENT IN EDUCATION

e As part of CSR and with a view to interacting with educational institutions, AGTL has appointed graduates
of TEVTA for its assembly operations in the plant. AGTL and TEVTA are working on a programme to not only
induct more graduates but also utilize the joint facilities of TEVIA and AGTL plant for customized fraining on
operational activities.

* Merit scholarships are offered to students of the University of Agriculture, Faisalabad and its campus in Dera
Ghazi Khan. Scholarships are also offered to the Government Technical Training Institute and Government
College of Technology in Dear Ghazi Khan for development of local talent.

» Students of different Universities were given an opportunity to visit the plant and to obtain an insight of
fractor manufacturing industry.

DEVELOPMENT OF LOCAL TALENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, AGTL is committed to development and supporting the local community
and local talent in what is otherwise a less developed area of DGK.,

86 | Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd




e The Company has a programme for induction of
young diploma graduates from the DGK
Government College of Technology. Special
programmes are launched for customized learmning
and development.

e The Company is proactive in providing internships to
students of various institutions of the country as well
as from other countries not only at the
manufacturing plant in Dera Ghazi Khan but at all
other locations.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

e Tractor festivals, free service programmes are held
throughout the vyear to improve efficiency of
resource utilization.

* We educate the farmers and his future generations on techniques of Farm Management with marketing
programmes which have been specially designed to minimize overhead cost and to increase retumns.
Such programmes are held with intermittence throughout the country at the grass roof level.

RURAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Al-Ghazi Tractors has developed a whole scale industry that provides employment and employment
generating activities, provides welfare services, marketing infrastructure and the impact of these activities has
had a huge impact on fransformation of the rural scene in the area. The benefits of the activities and
developments at Al-Ghazi have trickled down to the rural masses. Al-Ghazi has directly facilitated the process
of siphoning surplus labour from agriculture to the manufacture sector and with its allied activities, Al-Ghazi
provides gainful employment opportunities to the locals in fields as diverse as welding to painting o finance
and to information technology. Besides lasting rural development pattern, Al-Ghazi has concentrated on
Human development with training and scholarships and development of infrastructure.  Al-Ghazi has
contributed fo building a self-reliant society with a scientific bent through a system that frains our manpower
for specific requirements in fechnology, engineering, administration, management and marketing efc.

What was once a bucolic area is now an Industrial hub, that has prevented the march of the desert with its

investments in horticulture, and which with its expanding industrial throughput has contributed to employment
at the doorstep of the area thus decelerating migration to urban centres.
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Key Operating and Financial Data

Sales
Production

Profitability
Revenue

Gross profit
Investment income
Profit before taxation
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Eamings before investment income,
tax and depreciation (EBITDA)

Manpower Cost - Direct
Manpower Cost - Indirect
Total Manpower Cost

Financial position

Fixed assets
Long-term investments
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities
Net working capital

Less: Non-current liabilities

Capital employed

Represented by:
Share capital
Reserves
Unappropriated profit

CASH FLOWS
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

ORI 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(Rupees in ‘000)

23,933 24,423 16,206 13,385 12,416 14,071
24,823 24,091 16,005 13,584 13,014 14,055
19,372,622 18,871,448 12,098,828 9,636,109 8,780,685 9,262,626
4,665,484 5,259,738 3,348,741 2,499,478 2,268,143 2,069,369
29,033 108,055 125,039 424,444 435,143 378,450
3,734,835 4,585,013 2,877,625 2,392,046 2,251,937 2,023,294
1,282,321 1,461,893 950,641 799,763 677,193 651,804
2,452,514 3,123,120 1,926,884 1,592,283 1,574,744 1,371,490
3,775,863 4,536,000 2810598 2,013,749 1,859,004 1,683,845
375,240 336,868 266,484 224,434 183,387 204,828
303,572 236,217 217,209 263,981 219,621 196,481
678,812 573,085 483,693 488,415 403,008 401,309
828,804 714,732 649,897 612,208 466,751 404,433

= - - - 42,800 44,800

4,696 4,660 5,818 2,913 2,131 9,333
833,600 719,392 655,715 615,121 511,682 458,566
5,951,957 5,161,939 3,988,601 5,789,646 9,477,010 9,367,867
5,299,961 3,670,255 1,202,327 549,079 1,349,292 1,637,894
651,996 1,491,684 2,786,274 5,240,467 8,127,718 7,829,973
116,099 85,260 82,520 67,008 87,905 69,580
1,369,397 2,125,816 3,359,469 5,788,680 8,651,495 8,218,959
289,821 289,821 289,821 289,821 289,821 214,682
- 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
1,079,676 835,995 2,069,648 4,498,759 7,261,674 7,004,277
1,369,397 2,125,816 3,359,469 5,788,580 8,551,495 8,218,959
(1,155,682) 3,827,376 3,239,509 619,833 1,078,632 1,175,686
(151,004) 10,187 986,817 3,702,394  (342,6606) 522,032
(3,713,121) (3,803,822) (4,339,794) (4,321,698) (1,219,754) (1,071,853)




Analysis of Financial and
Non-Financial Performance

AGITL believes in achievement of business objectives through both financial and non-financial factors. From
the financial indicators like Sales revenue, net profit, gearing and liquidity etc. to non-financial indicators like
brand image, customer cenfricity, shareholders satisfaction and human resource development, the
Company focuses on all the aspects to maintain sustainable growth and to timely identify key focus areas for
remedial actions and growth.

Budgets are set for both financial and non-financial factors and performance is assessed accordingly.
Overall, majority of the targets set by the Company were achieved except for few indicators like units sold,
gross profit % etc. in which deviations were observed mainly due to drastic rupee devaluation, increase in raw
material prices, locally as well as imported, uncertain political scenario and overall economic slowdown in
automotive industry observed especially in the second half of the year.

Financial Indicators

Actual Results

Year 2018 had been a challenging year, the Company experienced improved sales volumes in the first half
of the year while depressed sales volumes experienced in second half. Despite challenging market situation,
the Company was able to increase its revenue and market share. Though an increase in revenue was noted
but the cost impact associated with the devaluation of rupee curtailed to translate such increase into
corresponding profits. The Company was able to achieve after tax profit of Rs.2.4 billion.

Summarized operating performance of the Company for the current year as compared to last year is as

follows:

2015 \PUTA

(Rupees in ‘000)
Revenue 19,372,522 18,871,448
Gross profit 4,665,484 5,259,738
Profit before taxation 3,734,835 4,685,013
Income tax expense 1,282,321 1,461,893
Profit for the year 2,452,514 3,123,120
Production and sales volumes for the year 2017 and 2018 are as follows:
Units

| 2018 B UIEAR
Sales 23,933 24,423
Production 24,823 24,091

Budget vs Actuals:

The Company has developed a system of budgeting which enables the preparation of a challenging yet
achievable budget. The Company also performs forecasting at each quarter end to reflect the current
market situation while projecting the rest of the period.
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Achievement of the Company against budgeted revenue is as under:
Revenue Rs. In thousand

Budget 21,537,134

Actual 19,372,522

The Company has nearly achieved its budgeted revenue target. However, margins remained under pressure
due to the reasons as enumerated above. That said, the Company is actively involved in exploring new
markets and has adopted several aggressive marketing strategies to market its fractors.

Methods and Assumptions in Compiling Indicators

The Company has identified indicators that effectively reflect the Company’s performance and profitability.
The Company analyses its market positioning, competitors and general market conditions while compiling
key indicators.

Sales are monitored on daily basis through various management reports and future lines of actions are
decided accordingly. Gross profit, expenses, profit after tax and EPS are monitored on monthly basis to gauge
performance. For management reporting purposes, the Company has developed a mix of system based
and dashboard reports to compute various KPI's.

An effective financial reporting system coupled with various management reports and a three layer review
system enables AGTL 1o report accurate, complete and reviewed information to all its stakeholders.

Non-Financial Indicators

Objective Monitoring

Manufactured Capital
Product Development Research and Development projects undertaken in collaboration with
CNHi to enable production of high quality tractors bearing low cost

Increase in Market Share Aggressive marketing strategies resulting in increased market share Operational
Efficiency and Effectiveness  Confinuous commitment o  operational
effectiveness through monitoring of production efficiency ratios and minimal
production losses

Economize on Cost — Optimum utilization of resources resulting in elimination of redundant costs
Eliminating Redundancies

Human Capital

Health, Safety and Effective system of horticulture and annual plantation project results in
Environment better environment for the employees.
Training and Education Continuous fraining of employees and workers. Monitoring tfraining need

analysis with special focus on safety at work

Relationship Capital

Supplier relationship Timely payment to vendors 1o enhance vendor confidence

Customer relationship Providing exquisite after sales services and support services to enhance
customer loyalty

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd




Analysis of Financial Rafios

Profitability Ratios

Gross profit ratio

Pre-tax profit ratio

Net profit to Sales

EBITDA margin to sales

Operating Leverage ratio

Return on asset

Return on Equity / Capital employed

Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio

Quick Ratio

Cash to current liabilities

Activity / Turnover Ratios
Inventory turnover ratio
Receivables turover ratio
Creditors turnover ratio
Fixed assets turnover ratio
Total assets turnover ratio

Operating Cycle

No. of days in inventory
No. of days in receivables
No. of days in payables
Operating Cycle

Capital Structure Ratios

Financial leverage ratio

Weighted average cost of debt

Debt to equityt ratio (As per book value)
Debt to equityt ratio (As per market value)
Inferest cover ratio

Investment / Market ratios

Pre-Tax Eamning per share
(Basic and diluted) - Rs

Post -Tax Earning per share
(Basic and diluted) - Rs

Price eamings ratio

Dividend yield ratfio

Dividend ratio

Dividend payout ratio

Dividend cover

Dividend per share

- Cash

- Bonus

Dividend payout - Rs ' 000

Cash dividend - %

Bonus Dividend - Rs' 000

Market value per share - Rs

- Closing

- High

- Low

Market capitalisation - Rs Million

Breakup value per share - Rs
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ORI 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(Rupees in ‘000)
24.08% 27.87% 27.68% 25.94%  25.83% 22.34%
19.28% 24.30% 23.78% 24.82%  25.65% 21.84%
12.66% 16.55% 15.93% 16.52%  17.93% 14.81%
19.49% 24.04% 23.23% 20.90% 21.17% 18.18%
-6.31 1.10 1.55 0.85 -2.00 0.80
36.14% 53.10% 41.49% 24.86%  15.77% 13.96%
179.09% 146.91% 57.36% 27.51% 18.41% 16.69%
1.12 1.41 3.32 10.54 7.02 6.09
0.46 0.78 2.13 6.61 5.40 4.98
0.06 0.37 1.10 4.24 2.91 1.50
5.05 7.37 4.89 3.30 3.38 4.45
565 129 79 464 98 34
22 22 18 11 6 7
23.37 26.40 18.62 15.74 18.81 22.90
2.86 3.21 2.61 1.50 0.88 0.94
72 50 75 112 109 83
1 3 5 1 4 11
17 17 20 34 58 49
56 36 59 78 54 44
0.44 N/A
3.10% N/A
2.90 N/A
0.12 N/A
30.74 N/A
64.43 79.10 49.64 41.27 38.85 47.12
42.31 53.88 33.24 27.47 27.17 31.94
12.90 11.41 17.15 15.03 13.51 6.65
7.14% 14.24% 13.16% 20.58% 6.81% 11.77%
14.00 7.02 7.60 4.86 14.68 8.50
92.17% 162.40%  225.61% 309.43%  92.02% 83.74%
1.08 0.62 0.44 0.32 1.09 1.19
39.00 87.50 62.50 85.00 25.00 25.00
- - - - 0.35 -
2,260,604 5,071,868 4,347,315 4,926,957 1,449,105 1,073,410
780% 1750% 1500% 1700% 500% 500%
- - - 75,139
546.00 614.55 570.00 413.00 367.02 212.43
775.31 784.04 718.89 564.00 464.24 246.70
490.04 525.00 378.78 295.00 195.00 193.89
31,648 35,622 33,039 23,940 21,275 9.121
23.62 36.67 57.96 99.86 147.53 191.42
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Comments on Ratios

Profitability Ratios

The Company’s sound business performance is depicted through favorable profitability ratios over the years.
The performance of the Company enhanced in FY 2016. FY 2017 witnessed giant leap forward with respect
to profitability of the Company. In the year 2017, Company made historic achievements in profitability and
posted ever highest profits and lbetter profitability ratios.

In the year 2018, the Company profitability decreased due to decrease in gross margins in line with
challenging socio-economic conditions, increased imported raw material prices and foreign currency
exchange rates.

Liquidity and Turnover Ratios
By devising strong cash and working capital management policies over the years, liquidity of the company is
still in good position despite the utilization of short term borrowing facility from bank.

Although a decline is observed as compared to last year, still the current and quick ratfios of the Company
shows stable position of the liquidity as the Company sfill has Rs.1.12 assets for each Re.1 liability.

Market Ratios
Market ratios remained stable during the year 2018. Slight decrease in share price as well as market ratios was
noted when compared with last year,

Market value of the share showed a CAGR of 21.04% from 2013 to 2018. Also, market capitalization
increased from Rs.9.1 billion in 2013 to Rs.31.6 billion in 2018. AGTL has continuously maintained a dividend
yield beyond the market norms in order to compensate its shareholders handsomely.

Capital Structure Ratios

The Company contfinuously monitors its capital structure and aims to keep it at its optimum level. The
Company remained debt free throughout its operation since the beginning, however, accelerated dividend
payments during last three years and long outstanding sales tax due from government resulted in utilization
of Overdraft facility from banks in 2018.

Promising interest cover ratio and debt to equity ratio is representative of company’s strong profitability and
financial capability.

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd



Graphical Analysis
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Sales and Production Units
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Dupont Analysis

Net Income

2,453

19,373

4 9 4 4
I Y " I I

Non Current
Liabilities

116 5,300 834 5,952 16,920 19,373

Non Current

InSeets Current Assets Total Cost

Current Liabilities

Dupont Analysis

Return on Equity increased from 147% in 2017 to 179% in 2018 i.e. an increase of 32% was noted.
Decrease in owner’s equity by Rs.757 million and increase in total assets by Rs.904 million contributed to
this increase, partially set off by decrease in Return on assets by 17% as compared to last year.

Total assets increase mainly attributable to increase in inventory and refund due from Government while
utilization of reserves for payment of dividends resulted in decrease of equity.

Asset turnover and Net profit margin both decreased as compared to last year mainly due to
disproportionate increase in sales as compared to increase in fotal assets while net income also
decreased as compared fo last year resulting in decrease in return on assets by 17% when compared with
last year.
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Six Years Horizontal Analysis

U 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(Rupeesin ‘000)
BALANCE SHEET
Fixed assets 714,732 649,897 612,208 466,751 404,433
Long-term investments - - 42,800 44,800
Long-term loans and deposits 4,660 5,818 2,913 2,131 9.333
Inventories 2,321,164 1,427,617 2,149,374 2,196,311 1,708,898
Trade receivables 12,023 279,759 27,759 13,796 166,306
Loan and advances 201,688 94,042 62,048 78,796 73,393
Trade deposits and short-term
prepayments 11,871 6,119 6,821 32,219 1,450

Intferest accrued 947 4,307 61,114 33,986 3,525
Other receivables 11,972 40,849 38,411 6,149 11,457
Taxation - payments less provision 40,075 - 70,828 - 30,669
Refunds due from the Government 1,221,688 819,138 1,017,953 1,281,074 1,709,416
Other financial assets - - 25,000 1,909,970 3,354,256
Cash and bank balances 1,340,511 1,316,770 2,330,238 3,924,709 2,308,497
Total assets 5,881,331 4,644,316 6,404,667 9,988,692 9,826,433
Current liabilities 3,670,255 1,202,327 549,079 1,349,292 1,637,894
Non-current liabilities 85,260 82,520 67,008 87,905 69,580
Total liabilities 3,755,515 1,284,847 616,087 1,437,197 1,607,474
Capital employed 2,125,816 3,359,469 5,788,580 8,551,495 8,218,959
Share capital 289,821 289,821 289,821 289,821 214,682
Reserves 1,835,995 3,069,648 5,498,759 8,261,674 8,004,277
Capital employed 2,125,816 3,359,469 5,788,580 8,551,495 8,218,959
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Revenue 18,871,448 12098828 9,636,109 8,780,685 9,262,626
Cost of sales 13,611,710 8,750,087 7,136,631 6,512,542 7,193,257
Gross profit 5,259,738 3,348,741 2,499,478 2,268,143 2,069,369
Distribution expenses 240,830 162,088 111,907 101,463 125,208
Administrative expenses 237,798 250,336 297,194 203,668 172,773

4,781,110 2,936,317 2,090,377 1,963,012 1,771,388
Other income 144,076 153,929 480,052 457,194 402,283
Other operating expenses 339,244 211,703 177,283 166,900 149,981

4,585,942 2,878,543 2,393,146 2,253,306 2,023,690
Finance cost 929 1,018 1,100 1,369 396
Profit before taxation 4,585,013 2,877,525 2,392,046 2,251,937 2,023,294
Income tax expense 1,461,893 950,641 799,763 677,193 651,804
Profit for the year 3,123,120 1,926,884 1,592,283 1,574,744 1,371,490
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Six Years Horizontal Analysis

BALANCE SHEET

Fixed assets
Long-term investments
Long-term loans and deposits

Inventories

Trade receivables

Loan and advances

Trade deposits and short-term
prepayments

Interest accrued

Ofther receivables

Taxation - payments less provision

Refunds due from the Government

Ofther financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Capital employed

Share capital
Reserves
Capital employed

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other income
Other operating expenses

Finance cost
Profit before taxation

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

PUERR 2017 | 2016 2015 2014 2013
(Increase / (decrease) from preceeding year in Rupees in ‘000)
64,835 37,689 145,457 62,318 30,952
- - (42,800) (2,000 (11,000)
(1,158) 2,905 782 (7,202) (11,895)
893,547 (721,757) (46,937) 487,413 144,628
(267,736) 252,000 13,963 (152,510) (220,252)
107,646 31,994 (16,748) 5,403 (2,501)
5,752 (702) (25,398) 30,769 104
(3,360) (56,807) 27,128 30,461 (188,787)
(28,877) 2,438 32,262 (56,308) (2,277)
40,075 (70,828) 70,828 (30,669) (82,759)
402,550 (198,815) (263,121) (428,342) 71,547
- (25,000) (1,884,970) (1,444,286) 2,102,627
23,741 (1,013,468) (1,594,471) 1,616,212 (1,474,139)
1,237,015 (1,760,351) (3,584,025) 162,259 356,152
2,467,928 653,248 (800,213) (188,602) 63,311
2,740 15,5612 (20,897) 18,325 195
2,470,668 668,760 (821,110) (170,277) 63,506
1,233,653) (2,429,111) (2,762,915) 332,536 292,646
- - - 75,139 -
(1,233,653) (2,429,111) (2,762,915) 257,397 292,646
(1,233,653) (2,429,111) (2,762,915) 332,536 292,646
6,772,620 2,462,719 855,424  (481,941) (5,5616,938)
4,861,623 1,613,456 624,089 (680,715) (4,795,080)
1,910,997 849,263 231,335 198,774 (721,858)
78,742 50,181 10,444 (23,745) 26,973
(12,538) (46,858) 93.526 30,895 29,539
1,844,793 845,940 127,365 191,624 (778,370)
(9.853)  (326,123) 22,858 54,911 (135,459)
127,541 34,420 10,383 16,919 (62,999)
1,707,399 485,397 139,840 229,616 (850,830)
(89) (82) (269) 973 (1,329)
1,707,488 485,479 140,109 228,643 (849,501)
511,252 150,878 122,570 25,389 (305,360)
1,196,236 334,601 17,5639 203,254 (544,141)
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Six Years Vertical Analysis

BALANCE SHEET

Fixed assets
Long-term investments
Long-term loans and deposits

Inventories

Trade receivables

Loan and advances

Trade deposits and short-term prepayme
Interest accrued

Ofther receivables

Taxation - payments less provision
Refunds due from the Government
Ofther financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Capital employed

Share capital
Reserves
Capital employed

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other income
Ofther operating expenses

Finance cost
Profit before taxation

Income tax expense
Profit for the year
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ZOCIANIEVTI | 2017 (12007 2016 2016
(Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

60.52% 714,732 33.62% 649,897 19.35%
0.34% 4,660 0.03% 5,818 0.03%
256.14% 2,321,164 109.19% 1,427,617 42.50%
4.13% 12,023 0.57% 279,759 8.33%
9.66% 201,688 9.49% 94,042 2.80%
3.16% 11,871 0.56% 6,119 0.18%
0.00% 947 0.04% 4,307 0.13%
0.95% 11,972 0.56% 40,849 1.22%
7.89% 40,075 1.89% - 0.00%
131.24% 1,221,688 57.47% 819,138 24.38%
0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
21.46% 1,340,511 63.06% 1,316,770 39.20%
495.51% 5,881,331 276.66% 4,644,316 138.25%
387.03% 3,670,255 172.65% 1,202,327 35.79%
8.48% 85,260 4.01% 82,520 2.46%
395.51% 3,755,515 176.66% 1,284,847 38.25%
100.00% 2,125,816 100.00% 3,359,469 100.00%
21.16% 289,821 13.63% 289,821 8.63%
78.84% 1,835,995 86.37% 3,069,648 91.37%
100.00% 2,125,816 100.00% 3,359,469 100.00%
100.00% 18,871,448 100.00% 12,098,828 100.00%
75.92% 13,611,710 72.13% 8,750,087 72.32%
24.08% 5,259,738 27.87% 3,348,741 27.68%
1.43% 240,830 1.28% 162,088 1.34%
1.58% 237,798 1.26% 250,336 2.07%
21.08% 4,781,110 25.34% 2,936,317 24.27%
0.32% 144,076 0.76% 153,929 1.27%
1.47% 339,244 1.80% 211,703 1.75%
19.93% 4,585,942 24.30% 2,878,543 23.79%
0.65% 929 0.00% 1,018 0.01%
19.28% 4,585,013 24.30% 2,877,525 23.78%
6.62% 1,461,893 7.75% 950,641 7.86%
12.66% 3,123,120 16.55% 1,926,884 15.93%




Six Years Vertical Analysis

2015 2015 2014 2014 2013 2013

(Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

BALANCE SHEET
Fixed assets 10.58% 466,751 5.46% 404,433 4.92%
Long-term investments - 42,800 0.50% 44,800 0.55%
Long-term loans and deposits 0.03% 2,131 0.03% 9,333 0.11%
Inventories 37.13% 2,196,311 25.68% 1,708,898 20.79%
Trade receivables 0.48% 13,796 0.16% 166,306 2.02%
Loan and advances 1.07% 78,796 0.92% 73,393 0.89%
Trade deposits and short-term

prepayments 0.12% 32,219 0.38% 1,450 0.02%
Interest accrued 1.06% 33,986 0.40% 3,525 0.04%
Other receivables 0.66% 6,149 0.07% 11,457 0.14%
Taxation - payments less provision 1.22% - 0.00% 30,669 0.37%
Refunds due from the Government 17.59% 1,281,074 14.98% 1,709,416 20.80%
Other financial assets 0.43% 1,909,970 22.33% 3,354,256 40.81%
Cash and bank balances 40.26% 3,924,709 45.90% 2,308,497 28.09%

Total assets 110.64% 9,988,692 116.81% 9,826,433 119.56%

9.49% 1,349,292 15.78% 1,637,894 18.71%
1.16% 87,905 1.03% 69,580 0.85%
10.64% 1,437,197 16.81% 1,607,474 19.56%

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Capital employed 100.00% 8,551,495 100.00% 8,218,959 100.00%

501% 289,821 3.39% 214,682 2.61%
94.99% 8,261,674 96.61% 8,004,277 97.39%
100.00% 8,551,495 100.00% 8,218,959 100.00%

Share capital
Reserves
Capital employed

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Revenue 100.00% 8,780,685 100.00% 9,262,626 100.00%
Cost of sales 74.06% 6,512,542 74.17% 7,193,257 77.66%
Gross profit 25.94% 2,268,143 25.83% 2,069,369 22.34%
Distrioution expenses 1.16% 101,463 1.16% 125,208 1.35%
Administrative expenses 3.08% 203,668 2.32% 172,773 1.87%

21.69% 1,963,012 22.36% 1,771,388 19.12%
Other income 4.98% 457,194 521% 402,283 4.34%
Other operating expenses 1.84% 166,900 1.90% 149,981 1.62%

24.84% 2,253,306 25.66% 2,023,690 21.85%
Finance cost 0.01% 1,369 0.02% 396 0.00%
Profit before taxation 24.82% 2,251,937 25.65% 2,023,294 21.84%
Income tax expense 7.72% 677,193 7.71% 651,804 7.04%
Profit for the year 16.52% 1,574,744 17.93% 1,371,490 14.81%
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Comments on Horizontal & Vertical Analysis

Statement of Profit or Loss

Sales Revenue

Significant increase in Sales Revenue of CAGR 13.9% was noted from 2013 to 2018 mainly due to sale of
increased volume of 23,933 units as compared to 14,071 units in 2013. Increase in Sales Revenue is a result
of differentiated marketing strategies, improved farmer’s economic health, recognition of Company’s quality
initiatives and Company’s strategy of engaging with its customers.

Gross Profit
Lean management and rigorous cost discipline assisted in achieving an implausible Gross Profit over the
years with a CAGR of 12.66% from 2013 1o 2018.

Although a plausible growth in Gross profit is observed during the year, a slight pressure in GP was noted during
the year as the GP% of the Company showed a decline of 3.79% as compared to last year mainly due to
rise of component price resulting from rupee devaluation. GP% of the company stands at 24.08% as
compared to 27.87% last year.

Overheads

The Company strongly believes in cost saving initiatives and effective controls over expenditures to curtail its
expenses. Compound annual growth of overheads, from 2013 to 2018, exhibited an increase of 11.82%,
which is attrioutable to various marketing initiatives taken to enhance sales.

Finance Cost
Finance cost increase significantly during the year as a result of short term borrowing facility from bank.

Other Income

Other income mainly represents income from investments. A declining tfrend in other income is mainly due to
payment of extra ordinary dividends from the year 2015 onwards. This ultimately resulted in reduced
investments in the financial market.

Profitability

A consistent growth in company’s profitability was observed from 2013 to 2018. Net Profit CAGR from 2013 to
2018 amounted to 10.17%. The profit after tax stood at Rs.2.54 billion as compared to Rs.3.1 billion in 2017
i.e. a decrease of 21% was noted as compared to last year as a result of decrease in gross margin and
increased finance cost during the year.
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Statement of Financial Position

Equity and Reserves
Equity and reserves have decreased over the years, though the company continue to make notable profits
thus increasing equity, the decrease is mainly affributable to extra ordinary dividend payouts to shareholders.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets of the Company grew over past six years from Rs.404 million in 2013 to Rs.828 million in 2018. The
increase is mainly attributable to capitalization of new Head office building in 2015 and various machinery
and equipment used in production at Plant.

Stock in trade

The Company makes all efforts to maintain raw material and components inventory at safety stock levels to
minimize production disruptions due to supply chain issues of auto sector. Higher inventory as at December
2018 is due to increase in forecasted sale of fractors in 2019.

Refunds due from the Government

This represents sales tax refunds arising due to difference in the rate of input tax @ 17% and the output tax @
5%. Significant amount of sales tax refund remained outstanding from the Government atf year end 2018.
Refund claims totaled Rs.1.79 billion which represents a significant increase of 47% as compared to last year.

Cash and bank balances

High dividend payouts from year 2015 onwards have resulted in availization of short term finances from bank
during the year to cater the working capital requirement. Cash in bank amounted to Rs.293 million while short
ferm borrowing from bank amounted to Rs.3.9 bilion thus a negative net cash balance of Rs.3.6 billion
existed at the year end.
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Quarterly Analysis

Sales 6,957,891 5,656,081 2,907,140 3,851,410 19,372,522
Gross profit 1,886,081 1,404,941 595,165 779,297 4,665,484
Other Income 15,023 20,026 13,825 13,028 61,902
Profit before tax 1,617,893 1,177,584 407,394 531,964 3,734,835
Profit after tax 1,136,097 718,325 255,188 342,904 2,452,514
100
Q0
80
08)’ 70
4% 60
g 50
o 40
30
20
10
0 . . .
Sales Gross Profit Profit Before Tax Net Profit
® Quarter 1 ® Quarter 2 ® Quarter 3 ® Quarter 4

104 | Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd




Comments on Quarterly Analysis

The momentum of growth in sales continued during the first quarter 2018 with sales of 8,827 fractors
compared with 6,455 delivered during same period last year. Company’s sales volume took an upturn mainly
on account of improved farmer’s economic health, recognition of Company’s quality initiatives and the
Company'’s strategy of engaging with its customers.

The Company managed to earn Gross Profit of Rs. 1,886 milion compared to Rs. 1,496 million of same
period last year mainly on the back of additional sales volume.

With resilient best management practices and good governance which are central to AGTLs approach to
business, the company eamed a record high post-tax profit of Rs. 1,136 million, an increase of over Rs. 216
million as compared 1o the same period last year. This franslates info record high first quarter EPS of Rs. 19.60
per share.

On account of Company’s quality initiatives and by engaging customers through different marketing
strategies including extensive road shows helped AGIL to contfinue the positive momentum during the
second quarter as well. 6,951 tractors were sold during the period as compared to 5,907 tractors sold in the
corresponding period last year.

During the quarter, Gross margins remained under pressure due to Rupee devaluation and cost inflation as a
result of steep rise of metal prices in the intfernational market. The Company managed to earn a Gross Profit
of Rs. 1,405 million during the quarter as compared to Rs. 1,281 million in same period last year on the back
of additional sales volume of 18%. However, NP % withessed a decrease mainly on account of super tax.

In the backdrop of off-season, worsening water crisis affecting farmers” economic health and post-election
scenario where clarity was awaited regarding government policies, the third quarter ended September 30,
2018 was a challenging quarter with sales of 3,602 fractors as against 5,672 tractors sold in third quarter of
2017.

Further, rupee devaluation and frequent increase in metal prices caused extra ordinary impulsion from
vendors for increase in prices of components. The increase in component prices given to vendors coupled
with lower sales volume resulted in depressed gross margin.

The drop in sales continued during the last quarter as the company managed fo sell 4,553 fractors in the last
quarter as compare to 6,389 tractor in same period last year,

Despite several challenges resulting from significant rupee devaluation, rising interest rates and considerable
increase in component prices, the Company was able to achieve a gross profit of Rs. 779 million as
compared to Rs. 1,319 million in the same period last year.

The Company ended the year with accumulated sale of 23,933 tractors as compared to 24,423 tractors sold
in the year 2017. The Company’s revenue increased by 3% to Rs.19.4 billion mainly on account of increase
in fractor prices in line with increasing cost and market conditions.
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Direct Cash Flow Statement

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers / service providers and employees
Workers Funds

Income tax paid

Sales tax refund / (payment)

Finance Cost paid

Retirement benefits

Loans, deposits and other operating income - net

Net cash (used) / generated from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Encashment of term deposits - net

Reurn on bank deposits

(Increase) / decrease in long-term loans

Net cash (used) / generated from investing activities

CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

2013 \NFUTAN

(Rupees in ‘000)
17,487,323 20,961,541
(16,400,260) (14,845,090
(360,626) (252,031)
(1,355,584)  (1,542,563)
(575,518) (402,550)
(54,754) -
36,138 (2,134)
67,599 (89,797)
(1,155,682) 3,827,376
(184,195) (129,451)
2,968 17.078
- 10,000
29,979 111,415
244 1,145
(151,004) 10,187
(3,713,121)  (3.803,822)
(5,019,807) 33,741
1,340,511 1,306,770
(3.679.,2996) 1,340,511




Free Cash Flows

ORI 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

(Rupees in ‘000)

Profit before taxation 3,734,835 4,585,013 2,877,525 2,392,046 2,251,937 2,023,294
Adjustment of non cash items 175,568 (47,148) (33,327)  (339,357) (388.,505) (343,829)
working capital changes (5,.066,085) (710,489) 395,311 (1,432,856) (784,800) (503.779)
Net cash generated from

operating activities (1,155,682) 3,827,376 3,239,509 619,833 1,078,632 1,175,686
Capital expenditure (184,195) (129,451) (95,875)  (191,609) (104,872) (71,518)
Free Cash flows (1,339,877) 3,697,925 3,143,634 428,224 973,760 1,104,168

Comments :
Significant decrease in free cash flows is mainly due to decrease in customer advances, increase in inventory and sale
tax refund withheld by government authorities.

4,000 —

3,000 —

2,000

1,000 —

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

0

(1,000) _

(2,000) _
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Statement of Value Addition

2013 [T

(Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %
Wealth Generated
Sales 19,372,522 100% 18,871,448 99%
Other income 61,902 0.3% 144,076 1%
19,434,424 100% 19,015,524 100%
Distribution of Wealth
Cost of sales & overheads (excluding remuneration) 14,666,108 75% 13,459,140 70.78%
To employees as remuneration 678,812 3% 573,085 3%
To government as tax 1,282,321 7% 1,461,893 8%
WPPF and WWF 284,608 1% 339,244 2%
To shareholders as dividend 2,260,604 12% 5,071,868 27%
Cash (injected from) / Retained within the business 261,971 1%  (1,889,706) -10%
19,434,424 100% 19,015,524 100%

@ Cost of sales & overheads 75%
@® To employees as remuneration 3%
@ To goverment as tax 7%
@ \WPPF and WWF 1%
@ To shareholders as dividend  12%

@ Cosh (injected from business) 1%
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Economic Value Added
EECTER 07

(Rupees in ‘000)
Net Operating Profit after Tax 2,578,082 3,124,049
Cost of Capital (206,999) (876,428)
Economic Value Added 2,371,083 2,247,621
Total Assets 6,785,457 5,881,331
Current Liabilities (5,299,961) (3.670,255)
Invested Capital 1,485,496 2,211,076
WACC 13.93% 39.64%
Cost of Capital 206,999 876,428
8000 7 @ 2018 ®2017
6000
4000 T
2000 Current Economic
Liabilities Value Added
0
Net Operating Total Assets
Profit after Tax
(2000)
(4000)
(6000) ~

Comments on Economic Value Added

Economic value addition is better than last year as the Company has reduced WACC in current year as
compared to 2017. WACC reduced mainly on account of short ferm financing obtained from bbanks for
accelerated dividend payments.
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summary of Statement of
Cash Flows-Last Six Years

ORI 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

(Rupees in ‘000)

Net cash (used in) / generated from

operating activities (1,155,682) 3,827,376 3,239,509 619,833 1,078,632 1,175,686
Net cash generated from / (used in)

investing activities (151,004) 10,187 986,817 3,702,394  (342,666) 522,032
Net cash generated from / (used in)

financing activities (38,713,121) (3.803,822) (4,339,794) (4,321,698) (1,219,754) (1,071,853)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and

cash equivalents (5,019,807) 33,741 (113,468) 529 (483,788) 625,865
Cash and cash equivalents as at the

beginning of the year 1,340,611 1,306,770 1,420,238 1,419,709 1,903,497 1277632
Cash and cash equivalents as at the

end of the year (8,679,296) 1,340,511 1,306,770 1,420,238 1,419,709 1,903,497

6,000 7]

4,000 7

2,000 7

-2,000 7

-4,000

- 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
-6,000

@ Operating activities @ Invesmenting activities @ Financial activities
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Comments on Cash Flow

The Company monitors its cash inflows and outflows on a daily basis. Cash management and investment
strategies are then planned to maximize returns. Operating cash flows witnessed high growth in 2017 as, the
Company has highest ever profitability. In 2018 operating cash flows fell slightly on negative side mainly on
account of decreased profit before tax, increased investment in stock in anticipation of expected sale in
coming year.

Net cash used in investing activities depicts cash utilization on account of fixed capital expenditure.
Moreover, in current year fixed capital expenditures mainly represented CAPEX relating to RO Plant & IND.
Waste Treatment Plant and other machinery and tools. Further the frend also depicts reduction in return on
investment over the period mainly on account of reduce investment.

Cash outflow from financing activities represents dividend payments which has increased over the years. A
total of Rs.3.7 billion was paid as dividend during the year 2018 as compared 1o Rs.3.8 billion in 2017.

During the year 2018, Company obtained notable value of runnning finance facility for smooth business
operations.
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Share Price Sensitivity Analysis

Company's Share price is interlinked with the Company's financial performance and has positive correlation
with the factors influencing the Company's performance.

In the prevailing business scenario, management considers the following factors to which the performance
and share price of the Company may be sensitive.

GOVERNMENT DECISIONS

Government decisions on crop prices, taxes, subsidized fractor schemes etc. are important drivers of the
Company’s share prices. Decisions favorable to the Company have led to increase in share price, whilst
decisions to the contrary have negatively impacted share price.

PLANT OPERATIONS
Stability of plant operations is of paramount importance. Stable plant operations allow for higher production
and add to the profitability of the Company which can positively affect the share price.

VARIATION IN MATERIAL COSTS

Being a manufacturing concern, material cost comprises of a significant portion of variable cost. Any
increase in material costs impacts the gross profit and results in reduced profits. This may adversely affect the
share price.

LAW AND ORDER
Political uncertainty makes business skittish and jeopardizes economic and business activity. Production suffers
because of supply chain issues arising out of law and order problems

EXCHANGE FLUCTUATION

The Company is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations since some of the raw materials are imported by the
Company. Continuous depreciation of Pak Rupee have adversely affected the financial performance of the
Company.
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Segmental Review of Business

MARKET SEGMENT/SHARE
Agriculture sector is regarded as lifeline of Pakistan’s economy as it accounts for an important part of the
country’s GDP and employs bulk of the total work force.

This sector has in general recorded a growth as against the previous year. Overall the tractor industry
witnessed a decrease in the calendar year 2018 as compared to the comparable period.

According to published numbers, 63,060 tractors were sold during the current period as against 66,369 last
year. AGTL is the second largest player in the fractor industry in Pakistan. Despite extremely challenging market
situation during the second half of the year, AGTL managed to enhance its market share to 38% as against
37% last year,

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Company remained principally engaged in the manufacture and/or sale of agricultural tractors,
implements and spare parts. The Company launched its improved version of Dabung model during the year
in order to strengthen Company’s presence in high HP segment. Also, the Company has imported first of its
kind New Holland Brand Combine Harvesters, Balers, and 95 HP tractors into Pakistan on exploratory basis.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

Tractor Industry

® AciL 38%
@ Tractor Industry  62%
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Major Capital Projects

The Company has been growing steadily over the years. Sustainable growth requires various tools and
complimenting support projects to maintain stability and to endure progress. Taking a long term view, the
Company has undertaken various projects like construction of Quality Assurance Lab, Component Storage
sheds and other facilitation projects to name a few with maijor focus remaining on product development,
quality enhancement and staff wellbeing.

Quality Assurance Lab

The importance of inspection of incoming parts and
outgoing finished goods in any manufacturing
concemn cannot be under estimated. The product
acceptability remains to be a direct function of the
quality of incoming parts. In modern times with rising
customer demands, it is imperative that the product
be free from faults and fuly meets customer
expectations.

Following the Company's commitment of quality
fractors for the customers, the Company decided to
build a new state of the art Quality Assurance Lab fully
equipped with specialized equipment and manned with competent lab technicians.

Construction of the Quality lab building is in its final stages including the procurement of requisitioned
equipment. The project is expected to be fully operational during second half 2019.

Component Storage Shed

The Company has been constructing Component
Storage Sheds for preservation of raw material and
finished components from unfavorable weather
conditions. This project is also in line with the Company’s
commitment to provide quality product to its customers.

Benefits to the Company and Shareholder
Projects being undertaken by the Company will ensure full compliance to quality assurance standards and
simultaneously work as a catalyst towards customer contentment and positive change in perception.

The projects will also add value to the Company’s processes and operations while contributing towards
effectiveness and efficiency of fractor's production.
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Outlook




Forward Looking Statement

The Company continues to focus on quality production and envisages to embark on the joumney of
infroducing a full range of products while continuously up -grading existing models in order to remain
competitive in the challenging business environment.

AGTL's contribution towards the rural development in Dera Ghazi Khan are well documented. AGTL recognizes
its role towards corporate social responsibility and plans its efforts for environmental protection and
restoration. A water affluent plant has been constructed at Plant which would convert the industrial waste
water to be appropriate for planting.

The company is committed to energy conservation, environmental protection measures, occupational
safety and health of its employees. With this mindset, AGTL is determined towards provision of comprehensive
and wider covered insurance policies to employees, water filtration RO plant, better recreation and clinical
services for the families living in staff town.

In line with the mission statement and keeping in view the economic environment affecting the Company as
highlighted above, the Company remains focused on delivery of quality products - the most enduring
competitive edge. Sound business plans are outlined, brainstormed and developed to coordinate strategies
for overall success of the Company.

AGIL is driven by optimism and belief on its ever agile workforce. Being cost effective, having hands on
management style along with the high standards of workmanship makes AGTL a perfect example for growth
and development.

Trends and Uncertainties

The economic outlook is sfill on the low side with market showing little signs of improvement. Uncertainties
surrounding silence from new government on subsidies & commaodity support prices and overall water
shortage in agricultural industry remains to be critical issues.

Significant devaluation of Pakistani Rupee, expected increase in interest rate, and the volatility of the
infernational economy resulted in adversely affecting commodity prices. This remained a cause of concem
and an area of business risk for the Company.

Steps taken to address uncertainties

Effective management through mitigating strategies has been done in response to main risks and
uncertainties facing the Company. For instance: In addressing business risk the Company’s strategies, plans
and oversight takes into account relevant factors; Risk of increase in price of raw materials is kept in check by
price revision committee of the Company; Exchange rate risk has been reduced as the Company’s product
has around 92% local components; Risk of inability to source raw material is managed by constantly
monitoring the supply base to ensure uninterrupted procurement.

Financial Projections

Keeping in view the foregoing, the Company is positive about future prospects and expects to perform well
in the ensuing years.
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Sources of Information and Assumptions Used for Forecasts

The company prepares annual budgets and forecasts 1o manage business more effectively. The forecasting
is done keeping in view the historical data and figures. Marketing feam is fully involved in preparing any sales
data. Number of customers, any fluctuations due to seasonal impacts and potential customers with
expected sales are accounted for while calculating any budgeted sales for following year.

On the human resource side, based on the last year's Training Need Analysis (TNA) and performance
appraisal of the Company personnel, adequate technical trainings were conducted for the identified
employees. The same process is followed on yearly basis. The Company will be conducting these frainings
and continue to support its employees in enhancing their professional capabilities in future also which would
equip the employees with required technical and management skills in the years to come.

Company Performance against Last Year’s Projections

Company sales and production levels remained broadly in line with the targets. The fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates and raw material prices resulted in increase in costs, which were mostly passed on or
curtailed, whereas other operating costs remained mostly at projected levels.

Status of Projects

The Company has successfully completed the RO plant project in 2018. A number of new projects have
been initiated considering the strategic goals of the Company. The projects includes construction of Quality
Assurance Lab, store shed and procurement & installation of dynamometers.

External Environment

1. Political
The poalitical scenario is expected to be uncertain with the awaited agriculture policy by new Government.

2. Economical
The fiscal deficit of the country, political instability and natural calamities may adversely impact the
performance of the Company.

3. Social
The customers of tractors industry comprise mainly of farmers with different age groups.

4. Technological
New technologies are continuously evolving in the agricultural industry and the Company is committed to
adopt any new technology that can positively affect the Company’s performance.

5. Legal

The Company’s operations are subject to regulation and future changes in regulation that may adversely
affect results, particularly in the areas of corporate law, direct and indirect taxes, competition law and
environmental law. The responsibility of compliance with applicable laws and regulations lies with the
departmental heads and the Company Secretary.
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Best
Corporate Report
Award

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd. was awarded 3rd position for “Best
Corporate Report Award 2017 in the Engineering & Auto
Sector,

This award was presented to AGIL by The Joint
Committee of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and the Institute of Cost and
Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP).

Corporate
Excellence
Award

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd. received the coveted award of the
Best Managed Company from the Management
Association of Pakistan.



Stakeholder
Relationship ana
Engagement




,
STO k@hOld erS Government = ¢ Compliance with laws and regulations

E n g O g e m e nT ir;;dulatory e Collaboration and access to information

bodies « Technical support on specific industry related issues
*  Clarity of organization and protection in periods of
uncertainty

. . e Clear and fransparent reward system
Per Board, AGIL is committed to Employees

conduct and enhance its relationship
with all classes of stakeholders acting in

¢ Training and professional development

e Stimulating and safe work environment

good faith, with |OVO|TV, faimess, * Information on Company’s strategy and results
fransparency and with due respect for Employees’ « Indirect participation in corporate life
the Company's core ethical values. families /

Community

Further, the objective of the Company's Development

investor relations policy is 1o govemn the
disclosure of material information to
analysts, shareholders and potential
investors in a manner designated to
provide broad non-exclusionary

o . . Dealers e Complete and rapidly accessible product
distrioution of information. and service information
network

e Business profitability
Building and retaining the frust of the

Company’s infernal  and  external
stakeholders is essential to Al-Ghazi's

* Quality and reliability of products / parts
* Competitive prices

e Extension of financial and non-financial assistance

continued business success.
Engaogement and didlogue are
conseqguently an important

component to  understand  their

expectations, needs and concems.
Existing and *  Quality, reliability and safety of products

prospective c . )
Stakeholders’ expectation and  tools customers ompetitive prices
and interaction channel as detailed in * Speed and efficiency of after sales services
jacent  tabl represent r
CIdJCICG able eprese ou Suppliers e Continuity of supply

engagement and relationship

* Fulfillment of contractual obligation
management.

Shareholders | * Access to informnation
* Transparent and responsible management

e Value creation (return on investment, sustainability of
business)

Analysts / « Availability of relevant information
Institutional

investors

Banks / e Continuity of business and operations
financial ) )

institutions * Good financial management

Media * Fulfilment of obligations of arrangement
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Tools and interaction Channel Effect on AGTL's performance and value

* Periodic and adhoc reporting The Company remains focused to have sufficient level of
compliance with laws and regulations.

e Daily dialogue Human resources play a key role for organisation's success.
e  Employee lunches / dinners

* Discussions regarding appraisals
and development path

¢ Inhouse communication
e Easy access to fop management
e Adherence to labour laws

* Staff town with family and bachelor

accommodation Adequate activities of the Company assist in maintaining positive
image of the Company at the levels of local community and
e Transport facility employees.

¢ Vaccination / health awareness
campaigns

e Participation in sports day events

¢ Health care plans, Community hall

* Daily contacts and periodic Dealers act as business partners. Satisfactory after sales services
meetings with the network helps in sustainable customer satisfaction.

e Individuals responsible for
monitoring the network and
ensuring fulfllment of contractual
standards

* Programs to support dealers
including fraining, conferences and
other incentives.

e Tractor festivals

e Affer Sale Service programme

* Market research Loyalty of customers to our products is key in achieving success

¢ Three-way communication through and good financial performance.
dealership, service centres and
mechanical workshops

 Daily relationship through Supply Our effective management of suppliers facilitates in achieving
Chain Deparment production objectives.
¢ Shareholders meetings Support of shareholders serve as a foundation to achieve the

«  Annual / Quarterly reports Company's objectives and vision.

e Price sensitive communications and
information

* Daily dialog (email, telephones)

* Investor relations section of the
Company’s website:
www.alghazitractors.com

* Communications to PSX Availability of adequate information about the Company helps in
« Investor relation section of AGTL's maintaining positive image of the Company with analysts and

website, containing relevant instiftutional investors.
information about the Company"

e Providing of information as per )
requirements of banks Aftractive rates and terms of overdrafts and other arrangements.

* Freguent meetings and interaction"”

* Promotional activities are carried Necessary awareness about the Company and its products is
as per Marketing requirements imparted.
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Notice of 36th |
Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 36th Annual General Meeting of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited will be held on
Thursday, 25 April 2019 at 14:00 hrs. at Beach Luxury Hotel, Karachi to fransact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements, the Chairman’s Review Report, the
Directors’ Report and the Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

. To declare the final cash dividend, the directors have recommended a dividend of 180% i.e. Rs. 9 per

share in addition fo interim dividend already paid @ 600% making a total dividend of 780% i.e. Rs. 39 per
share.

To appoint Auditors for the term ending at the conclusion of next annual general meeting and to fix their
remuneration. The retiing Auditors M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co. being eligible, have offered themselves for
reappointment,

By Order of the Board

£ b A

Muhammad Babar Khan
Company Secretary
Karachi, April 4, 2019

NOTES:

122

1.

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 19 April 2019 to 25 April 2019 (both days
inclusive). Transfers received at our Share Registrar Office, M/s FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Ltd. situated at 8-F
Next to Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block 6, PE.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, by the close of business on 18
April 2019 will be treated in time for the purpose of entitlement of dividend to the fransferees and to attend
and vote at the meeting.

. A member entitled to affend and vote may appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. No

person shall act as a proxy (except for a corporation) unless he/she is entitled 1o be present and vote in
his/her own right. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Registered Office of the
Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

CDC share holders or their proxies are requested to bring with them their Computerized National Identity
Card or Passport along with the participants ID number and their Account Number at the time of aftending
the Annual General Meeting in order to facilitate their identification. For CDC shareholders, the
representatives of corporate bodies should bring attested copies of board of directors' resolution/powers
of attorney and/or all such documents as are required under Circular No.1 dated 26 January 2000 issued
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”) for the purpose.

Members (non-CDC) are requested to promptly communicate to the Share Registrar of the Company any
change in their addresses. CDC shareholders should submit any change in their addresses to the CDC.

Members who have not yet submitted copy of their Computerized National Identity Cards or NIN (in case
of corporate entities), and in case of a foreigner, copy of Passport, are requested 1o send the same to the
Share Registrar of the Company at the earliest. It may kindly be noted that in case of non-receipt of the
copy of valid CNIC, passport or NTN, the Company would be constrained to withhold dispatch of dividend
warrants. Members whose shares are deposited in any sub-account or investor account with CDC should
submit their CNICs or NTNs, as the case may be, to CDC.

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd




6.

In accordance with Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SRO No.1145(1)/2017 dated 6
November 2017, a listed company is required to pay cash dividend to the shareholders only through
electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In compliance
with the said law, in order to receive your dividends directly in your bank account, you are required 1o
provide (if not already provided) the information mentioned on the related Electronic Credit Mandate
Form placed on the Company’s website and send the same to your brokers / CDC if the shares are held
in electronic form or to the Company’s Shares Registrar if the shares are held in physical form.

Per the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the
amount of dividend paid by the company. These tax rates are as under;

e For *filers’ of income tax retumns: 15%
e For ‘non-filers’ of income tax returns: 20%

In case of Joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will
be deducted on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be notified by the shareholder. In
this regard, shareholders are requested to provide shareholding proportions along-with CNIC Nos. of
Principal shareholder and Joint shareholder(s) in respect of shares held by them (only if not already
provided) in writing as follows by 18 April 2019 to the Company’s share registrar. If no nofification is
received, each joint holder shall be assumed to have an equal number of shares.

Folio / CDS
Account No.

Total Shares Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder

Name &
CNIC No.

Shareholding
proportion
(No. of Shares)

Name &
CNIC No.

Shareholding
proportion
(No. of Shares)

To enable the company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend, shareholders whose
names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the welbsite of FBR, despite the fact
that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL, otherwise tax on their
dividend will be deducted @ 20% instead @ 15%. Corporate shareholders are requested to send a copy
of their NTN to the share registrar or their participant in case of CDC accounts.

SECP through its SRO 470(1)/2016, dated 31 May 2016, had allowed companies to circulate Annual
Audited Accounts to its members through CD/DVD/USB af their registered addresses. In view of this, the
Company has sent its 2018 annual report 1o its shareholders in form of CD. Any member requiring printed
copy of 2018 annual report may send a request using the related standard request form placed on the
Company’s website.

The Form of Proxy in English and Urdu is attached in the Annual Report and should be withessed by two
persons whose names, addresses and CNIC Numbers should be mentioned on the forms. For CDC
shareholders, aftested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form; and in case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of
attorney and attested copy of valid CNIC of the person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the
corporate entity, shall be submitted (unless provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

10.The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 along with reports have

been placed on the website of the Company.
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INnvestor Relations

At AGTL we are committed to ensuring that shareholders and investors have easy access to clear, reliable
and meaningful information on the company in order to make informed investment decisions. In the context
of constantly evolving requirements of disclosure, fransparency and corporate governance, we aim to
provide investors with an accurate, coherent and balanced account of company’s performance. To do this,
multiple communication platforms are utilized including annual general meetings with shareholders and the
investor relations section on our website. Apart from financial results, the website, www.alghazitractors.com,
has other investor related information including Company profile, annual and quarterly reports, maijor
announcements and information on free float shares.

Further, video presentation of CEO is also placed on company’'s website detailing financial position and
performance of the company, projects accomplished during the year and planned for next year including
as overview of future prospects of the company.

SHAREHOLDING INFORMATION

The Company is listed on Pakistan stock Exchange. The share symbol is AGIL. The share capital of the
Company is Rs. 289.8 million. With a base price of Rs. 5 per share, the total number of the shares is
57,964,201

There are 2,602 shareholders which are listed as follows:

Al-Futtaim Industries Company 28,992,705 shares = 50.02%
CNH Industrial N.V. 25,022,379 shares = 43.17%
Directors 1,060 shares = 0.002%
Companies and corporations 662,686 shares = 1.14%
Individual and others 3,285,381 shares = 5.67%
Total 57,964,201 shares = 100%

DIVIDEND POLICY

AGITL has a long history of paying rich dividends. The dividend policy is in the best interest of the Company,
the shareholders and the stakeholders.

AGITL's equity now stands at Rs. 1.3 billion. The Company’s five rupee share is without any doubt the top stock
of the Auto and Industrial Engineering sector of Pakistan.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Beach Luxury Hotel, Karachi on April 25, 2019 ot
14:00 hrs.

DIVIDEND PAYMENTS DURING THE YEAR
Final dividend for the year 2017 was paid on May 10, 2018 @Rs.25 per share i.e.500%.

1st Interim dividend for the year 2018 was paid on Septemibber 09, 2018 @Rs.30 per share i.e. 600%
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The 2018 final dividend will be paid by stipulated time to shareholders registered in the books of the Company
at the close of business on April 19, 2019. The Board of Directors have recommmended final dividend of Rs.
9.00 per share. Thus making a total cash dividend of 780% i.e. Rs. 39 per share for the year 2018

100 o - 350 %
Dividend

80 ’ ~ - 300 %
250 %

60—
200 %

40
150 %
20 E " - 100 %

0 T T 50 %

2013 2014 ‘ 2015 2016 2017 2018

= Dividend per share (Rs) Dividend payout ratio (%)
SHARE REGISTRAR

Share transfers and all other investor related matters are attended to and processed by our registrar FAMCO
Associates (Pvt) Limited

FAMCO Associates (Pvt) Limited

8-F, Next to Hotel Faran, Nursery

Block 6, P.E.C.H.S

Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi

Tel: 92 21 32420755, 32427012, 32426597

Fax: 92 21 2475604

Timings: 8:30 am to 1:00 pm & 2:00 pm to 3:30 pm

INVESTOR RELATION’S CALENDAR

2018 Annual Financial Results February 11, 2019

2018 Annual General Meeting April 25, 2019

Book closure dates for 2018 Final Dividend April 19, 2019 to April 25, 2019

Payment of Final Dividend within 15 working days from April 25, 2019
2019 1st Quarterly Results April 25, 2019

2019 2nd Quarterly Results August 22, 2019

2019 3rd Quarterly Results October 24, 2019

2019 Annual Financial Results February 13, 2020

Dates are subject to change.
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Pattern of Shareholding

As at December 31, 2018

No. of Shareholding
Shareholders From To Shares Held
989 1 100 42,551
724 101 500 200,252
380 501 1000 299,370
381 1001 5000 820,289
67 5001 10000 496,629
20 10001 15000 267,548
11 15001 20000 184,785
7 20001 25000 155,818
4 25001 30000 107,350
3 30001 35000 98,149
4 40000 45000 166,215
2 50001 55000 101,924
2 55001 60000 115,000
1 65001 70000 68,290
1 90000 25000 90,000
1 100001 105000 100,785
1 135001 140000 137,300
1 165001 170000 166,362
1 330001 335000 330,500
1 25020001 25025000 25,022,379
1 28990001 28995000 28,992,705
2,602 57,964,201
Categories of Shareholders
Sr. No. Categories of Share holders Number of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
1 Individuals 576 347,525 0.60%
2 Financial Institutions 3 3,149 0.01%
3 Associated Companies 2 54,015,084 93.19%
4  Others 7 21,012 0.04%
5 Central Depository Company (b) 2,014 3,577,431 6.17%
2,602 57,964,201 100.00%
(b) Categories of Account holders and Sub-Account holders
as per Central Depository Company of Pakistan
as at December 31, 2018
Sr. No. Categories of Share holders Number of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
1 Individuals 1957 2,630,459 4.54%
2 Investment Companies 2 25,000 0.04%
3 Insurance Companies 7 260,762 0.45%
4 Joint Stock Companies 27 47,910 0.08%
5 Financial Institutions 2 345,100 0.60%
6 Modaraba Companies 2 1,175 0.00%
7 Mutual Fund 7 65,750 0.11%
8 Others 10 201,275 0.35%
2014 3,577,431 6.17%
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Shareholding Information

As at December 31, 2018

Directors, CEO and their spouses and minor children:
Mr. Muhammad Ali Qaiyum - Independent Director

Associated companies:
Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC
CNH Industrial N.V.

Banks, Development Financial Institution,
Non Banking Financial Institution

Insurance Companies
Modaraba Companies

Mutual Fund:
CDC - Trustee First Capital Mutual Fund

Others

Individuals
Local

Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest:
Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC
CNH Industrial N.V.

Number of Shareholders  Shares Held

1 1,050
1 28,992,705
1 25,022,379
5 334,999
7 260,762
2 1,175
7 65,750
46 308,447
2532 2,976,934
1 28,992,705
1 25,022,379
@ Al-Futtaim industries Company LLC 50.02%
@ CNH Global N.V. 43.17%
@ ndividuals 5.14%
@ Banks, Insurance Companies,
Modaraba Companies,
Mutual Fund & Other 1.67%
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pwc AF-FERGUSON&CO,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
AL-GHAZI TRACTORS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the statement of profit or loss,
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with
the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and give the informaticn required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at
December 31, 2018 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

g%

A F. Ferguson & co ., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6[32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <www.pwc.com|pk>

s Karachi =Lahore =lIslamabad
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Following are the Key Audit Matters:

S. No.

(0)

Key Audit Matters

Companies Act, 2017

(Refer note 3.1.3 to the annexed financial
statements)

The fourth schedule to the Companies Act,
2017 became applicable to the Company for
the first time for the preparation of these
annexed financial statements.

As part of this transition to the requirements,
the management performed a gap analysis
to identify differences between the previous
and current fourth schedules and as a result
certain amendments relating to presentation
and disclosures have been made in the
Company's annexed financial statements.

In view of the various additional disclosures
in the annexed financial statements due to
first time application of the fourth schedule to
the Companies Act, 2017, we considered
this as a key audit matter.

A'F'FERGUSON&CO,

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

We reviewed and understood the
requirements of the fourth schedule to the
Companies Act, 2017, Our audit procedures
included the following:

¢ considered the management's process
to identify the additional disclosures
required in the Company's annexed
financial statements.

e obtained relevant underlying supports
for the additional disclosures and
assessed their appropriateness for the
sufficient audit evidence.

e verified, on test basis, the supporting
evidence for the additional disclosures
and ensured appropriateness of the
disclosures made.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's reports

therson.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation cf financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting frem error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

° Obtain 2n understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rzasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s -ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern,

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: March 29, 2019
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Statement of Financial Position
As af December 31, 2018

Note 2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘000)

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Assets 4 828,804 714,732
Long-term loans 891 1,135
Long-term deposits 3.805 3,525
833,500 719,392
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 5 3,507,588 2,321,164
Trade receivables 6 56,606 12,023
Loans and advances 7 132,337 201,688
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 8 43,305 11,871
Interest accrued 9 1 947
Ofther receivables 10 12,964 11,972
Taxation - payments less provision 108,040 40,075
Refunds due from the Government 11 1,797,206 1,221,688
Other financial assets 12 - -
Cash and bank balances 13 293,910 1,340,511
5,951,957 5,161,939
TOTAL ASSETS 6,785,457 5,881,331
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 14 289,821 289,821
Reserves 15 1,079,576 1,835,995

1,369,397 2,125,816
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred staff benefits - compensated absences 64,057 39,514
Employee benefit obligations 31 21,602 10,007
Deferred tax liability 16 30,440 35,739
116,099 85,260
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 17 1,247,226 3,065,636
Unclaimed Dividend 79,529 604,619
Short ferm financing 18 3,973,206 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,416,060 3,755,515
COMMITMENTS 19
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,785,457 5,881,331

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

| Rt i

Cﬁiéf Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Note 2018 2017

(Rupees in '000)

Revenue 20 19,372,622 18,871,448
Cost of sales 21 (14,707,088) (13,611,710)
Gross profit 4,665,484 5,259,738
Distribution expenses 22 (276,950) (240,830)
Administrative expenses 23 (305,425) (237,798)

4,083,109 4,781,110
Other income 24 61,902 144,076
Other operating expenses 25 (284,608) (339,244)

3,860,403 4,585,942
Finance costs 26 (125,568) (929)
Profit before taxation 3,734,835 4,585,013
Income fax expense 27 (1,282,321)  (1,461,893)
Profit for the year 2,452,514 3,123,120
Eamings per share (Rupees) 28 42.31 53.88

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-

Chief Executive

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss:

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified
in profit or loss

Remeasurements of post employment
benefit obligations

Impact of deferred tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Note 2018 2017

(Rupees in '000)

2,452,514 3,123,120

(20,902) (9,457)

(20,502) (9,457]

2,431,612 3,113,663

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-

Chief Executive

Pyt

Director

Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 29
Income tax paid
Finance cost paid
(Increase) / decrease in long-term deposits
Employee benefit obligations paid
Increase / (decrease) in deferred staff
benefits - compensated absences
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to fixed assets

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Encashment of term deposits - net

Return on bank deposits received

Decrease in long-term loans

Net cash (outflow) / inflow from investing activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

Dividend paid
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents atf beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 30

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

* Pyt

Chief Executive Director
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2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘'000)

251,579 5,394,806
(1,355,584)  (1,542,563)
(52,208) (194)
(280) 13
(23,732) (22,260)
24,543 (2,426)
(1,155,682) 3,827,376
(184,195) (129,451)
2,968 17,078
- 10,000
29,979 111,415
244 1,145
(151,004) 10,187
(3,713,121)  (3.803,822)
(5,019,807) 33,741
1,340,511 1,306,770
(3,679,296) 1,340,511

Chief Financial Officer



Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Balance as at January 1, 2017

Final dividend @ Rs. 12.5 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2016

First inferim dividend @ Rs. 12.5 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2017

Second interim dividend @ Rs. 25 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2017

Third interim dividend @ Rs. 25 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2017

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2017

Other comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2017

Balance as at January 1, 2018

Transfer of general reserve to
unappropriated profit

Final dividend @ Rs. 25 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2017

First inferim dividend @ Rs. 30 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2018

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2018

Other comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2018

Balance as at December 31, 2018

Issued,
subscribed General

reserve profit

and paid-up
capital

Unappropriated

(Rupees in '000)

289,821 1,000,000 2,069,648 3,359,469
(724,553)  (724,553)

(724,553)  (724,553)

(1,449,105)  (1,449,105)

(1,449,105)  (1,449,105)

3,123,120 |[3,123,120

(9,457) (9,457)

3,113,663 3,113,663

289,821 1,000,000 835,995 2,125,816

(1,000,000) 1,000,000

(1,449,105)  (1,449,105)

- (1,738,926) (1,738,926)

- - 2,452,514 |[2,452,514
- - (20,902) (20,902)
- - 2,431,612 2,431,612
289,821 - 1,079.576 _ 1,369,397

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-

Chief Executive

Pt

Director

Chief Financial Officer

Annual Report 2018 | 137



138

Notes to and Forming Part of The Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

1.1

1.2

3.1

3.1.1

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies Act,
2017) as a public limited company in June, 1983 and is quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.
The registered office of the Company is situated at ‘Tractor House, Plot No. 102-B, 16th East Street, Off
Korangi Road, Phase |, D.H.A, Karachi’. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of agricultural fractors, generators, implements and spare parts and providing irrigation solutions for
agriculture.

The Company is a subsidiary of Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC, U.A.E.

The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

The geographical locations and adresses of the Company’s business units, including plant are as
under:

- The registered office of the Company is situated at Tractor House, 102-B, 16th East Street, DHA Phase
, Off. Korangi Road

- The assembling plant of the Company is situated at Sakhi Sarwar Road, PO. Box 38, Dera Ghazi Khan

- The marketing centres of the Company are situated at:

10km Sheikhpura Road, Lahore

Plot No. 20, Industrial Estate, Near Mill No, 4, Multan

Plaza No. 4, 2nd Floor, Sector A, Jinnah Boulevard (East), DHA Phase I, Islamalbad

Abad Lakha, Shikarpur Road, Sukkur

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS IN THE CURRENT REPORTING YEAR

The Company’s financial position and performance was particularly affected by the following events
and fransactions during the reporting year:

a) Obtained running finance facilities - refer note 18

) During the year, sales tax refund accumulated excessively due 1o non-payment against duly issued
Refund Payment Orders by Federal Board of Revenue (FBR).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd



3.1.2

3.1.3

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as nofified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The matter involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are provision for taxation and provision for staff retirement benefit,

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the
circumstances.

There have been no critical judgements made by the Company’s management in applying the
accounting policies that would have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective and relevant

The fourth schedule to the Companies Act 2017 (the Act) became applicable to the Company for
the first fime for the preparation of these financial statements. The Act (including its fourth schedule)
forms an integral part of the statutory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company and
amongst others, prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in relation to various elements of the
financial statements.

The Act has also brought certain changes with regard to preparation and presentation of annual and
interim financial statements of the Company. These changes also include change in nomenclature
of primary statements. Further, the disclosure requirements contained in the fourth schedule to the
Act have been revised, resulting in the:

- elimination of duplicative disclosures with the IFRS disclosure requirements; and
- incorporation of significant additional disclosures.
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b) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective but not relevant

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods
beqginning on or after January 1, 2018 are considered not to be relevant for the Company’s financial
statements and hence have not been detailed here.

c) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
not yet effective but relevant

The following are the new standards, amendments o existing approved accounting standards and
new interpretations that will be effective for the periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 that
may have an impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IFRS @ ‘Financial instruments’ - This standard replaces the guidance in I1AS 39. It includes requirements
on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; it also includes an expected
credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model.

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers’ - IFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue standards:
IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts, and the related interpretations on revenue
recognition.

IFRS 15 infroduces a single five-step model for revenue recognition and establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognition of revenue from confracts with customers based on a core principle
that an entity should recognise revenue representing the fransfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

The management is in the process of assessing the impact of changes laid down by these standards
on its statutory financial statements.

3.2 Overall valuation policy

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed
in the accounting policy notes.

3.3 Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation except freehold land and
capital work-in-progress which are stated at cost.

The cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease. Depreciation on all other assets is
charged to statement of profit or loss applying straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset less
residual value is written off over its estimated useful life. The useful life of the assets as estimated by the
management is as follows:

- Leasehold land 99 vears

- Building 40 years

- Plant and machinery 10 years

- Furniture and fixtures 4 - 10 years
- Office equipment 10 years

- Computer hardware 3 years

- Vehicles 4 years

- Factory equipments and tools 10 years

- Intangible assets 3 years
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3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each date of
statement of financial position.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalised and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gains and losses on disposal / retirement of fixed assets are included in statement of profit or loss.
Impairment

The carrying values of assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the
carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are
written down to their recoverable amount and the resulting impairment is charged fo statement of profit
or loss.

Loans, deposits and other debts

These are initially measured af cost which is the fair value of the consideration given and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Taxation

Current
Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits available, if any, in accordance with the prevailing income tax laws.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on all temporary differences arising between tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liability
is generally recognised for all taxable femporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognised o the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Inventories

These are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on moving average
method except for stock-in-transit which is valued af invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Cost of finished goods includes prime cost and appropriate portion of manufacturing
expenses.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary 1o make the sale.

Stores and spares are valued at average cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice
value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are valued at invoice value, being the fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Provision is made against receivables considered doubtful of recovery.
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3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

Investments

Investments of the Company are classified into the following categories:

(i) Held to maturity
These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity with the Company having
positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. These are stated at amortised cost.

(ii) Investments at fair value through profit or loss
These are investments designated af fair value through profit or loss at inception. Investments in this
category are classified as current assets if they are expected 1o be realised within twelve months
of the date of statement of financial position.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss” are recognised at fair value and changes in fair value
are taken to statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes
of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, cheques, demand drafts in hand
and balances with banks on current accounts and PLS savings accounts,

Staff retirement benefits

(i) Defined benefit plan
The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. The
scheme defines an amount of gratuity benefit that an employee will receive on retirement subject
to a minimum qualifying period of service under the scheme.

Contributions to the gratuity scheme are based on actuarial recommendations. The latest actuarial
valuation of the scheme was carried out as af December 31, 2018 using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial
position immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in
which they occur.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss.

(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company also operates an approved contributory provident fund for its permanent employees.
Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at
the rate of 10% of basic salary.

Financial instruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are sulbbsequently
measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost, as the case may be.

Any gains and losses on derecognition of financial assets and liabilities are taken to statement of profit
or loss currently.

Deferred staff benefits - compensated absences

The Company accounts for compensated absences of its employees on unavailed balance of leave
in the period in which the leave is earned. The liability recognised in respect of compensated absences
is based on employees last drawn salary.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
received. These are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are recorded af the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
fransaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupee at the rates
of exchange approximating fo those prevailing at the date of statement of financial position. Exchange
gains and losses are taken o statement of profit or loss.

Revenue recognition
Sales are recorded on dispatch of goods to customers.

Return on deposits and investments is recognised on accrual basis.

Dividend income on investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is
established.

Borrowings and their costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at cost being the fair value of the consideration received together with
the associated transaction cost. Subsequently, these are recognised at amortised cost using the effective
intferest method. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred
except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Borrowings payable within next twelve months are classified as current liabilities.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to shareholders is recognised as liability in the financial statements in the period in
which the dividend is declared / approved.

Fixed Assets Note 2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)
Property, plant and equipment

Operating assets 4.1 707,293 639,742
Capital work-in-progress 4.2 117,799 73,100
825,092 712,842

Infangible assets 4.3 3.712 1,890
828,804 714,732
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4.1 Operating assets

Building

on
Freehold Lease hold ~freehold
land

Net carrying value basis
Year ended December 31, 2018

Factory
equipment

Plantand | Furniture
machinery jand fixtures| equipment

Computer

P Vehicles

on lease
hold land

and tools

(Rupees in '000)

Opening net book value 4,334 75,067 185,418 163,774 119,972 10,457 13,972 7,651 53,339 5758 639,742

Addifions - - 38,825 504 35,253 3,686 6,621 3,151 42,229 5731 135,898

Disposals

Cost 370 43 193 390 18,263 19,629

Accumulated depreciation (370) am (160) (364) (18,263) (19,568)
- - - - 2 33 26 - - 61

Depreciation charge (825) (7.274)  (4.468)  (22,285)  (2,035) (2,201) (4,498) (23,060 (1,642)  (68,286)

Closing net book value 4,334 74,242 216,969 159,810 132,940 12,006 18,359 6,278 72,508 9,847 707,293

Gross carrying value basis

At December 31, 2018

Cost 4,334 81,599 300964 178,899 381,834 19,279 28,689 25,878 128,988 24,263 1,174,727

Accumulated depreciation - (7.357) (83,995) (19.089) (248,894) (7,273 (10,330)  (19,600) (56,480) (14,416) (467,434)

Net book value 4,334 74,242 216,969 159,810 132940 12,006 18,359 6,278 72,508 9,847 707,293

Net camying value basis

Year ended December 31, 2017

Opening net book value 4,334 75,891 168,633 168,234 133,506 9,787 10,673 4,474 37,220 7,186 609,838

Addifions - - 33,219 - 7,135 2,559 5639 6,305 38,950 35 93,742

Disposals

Cost 51 785 719 1,494 23,738 26,787

Accumulated depreciation (61 (662) (189) (1.472) (18,869) (21,213)
- - - - 123 560 22 4869 5574

Depreciation charge (824) (6,334)  (4.460)  (20,669) (1,766) (1,680) (3,106) (17.962) (1,463)  (58,264)

Closing net book value 4,334 75,067 185,418 163,774 119,972 10,457 13,972 7,651 53,339 5,758 639,742

Gross camying value basis

At December 31, 2017

Cost 4,334 81,599 262,139 178,395 346,951 16,106 22,263 23,117 105,022 18,631 1,058,458

Accumulated depreciation (6,532) (76,721)  (14,621)  (226979)  (5,649) (8.291)  (15,466) (51,683)  (12,773) (418,716)

Net book value 4,334 75,067 185,418 163,774 119,972 10,457 13,972 7,651 53,339 5,758 639,742

4.1.1 Details of fixed assets disposed off during the year:

Aggregate of assets
disposed of having book value
less than Rs. 500,000 each:

Vehicles

Plant and machinery
Computer hardware
Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures

4.1.2

Location
Sakhi Sarwar Road, PO. Box 38,
Dera Ghazi Khan

Plot No. 20, Industrial Estate,
Near Mill No, 4, Multan

10km Sheikhpura Road, Lahore

Tractor House, 102-B, 16th East Street,
DHA Phase |, Off. Korangi Road, Karachi

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd

Cost Accumulated Net book Sale
depreciation value proceeds

(Rupees in ‘000)

18,263 18,263 - 2,731
370 370 - -
390 364 26 35
193 160 33 95
413 411 2 107

19,629 19,568 61 2,968

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as follows:

Usage Total Area (acres)
Assembling plant / staff colony 90
Marketing centre 10
Marketing centre 1.86
Head office 0.18



4.2

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

2017
Baelgnce Adg:ﬂ%ws Transfers- Ba;?r;(t:e Be;lglr;(t:e Agﬂ'rﬂ?;s Transfers- Bﬂ?g(t:e
JanZL(lﬁl‘By 1, the year note Dg?fez%]?gr JanzLéil’%l 1, the year note D;fezngf7er
(Rupees in '000)
Civil works 22,705 45,278 (428) 67,555 32,605 23,993 (33,893) 22,705
Plant and machinery 29,462 11,000 (35,272) 5,190 2905 29,167 - 29,462
Advances to suppliers 20,932 45,0564 (20,932) 45,054 5,731 20,932 (6,731) 20,932
Total 73,099 101,332 (56,632) 117,799 38,631 74,092 (39.624) 73,099
4.3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note 2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)
Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value 1,889 1,428
Additions 3,596 1,239
Amortisation (1,773) (778)
Closing net book value 3,712 1,889
Gross carrying value basis
Cost 13,213 9,617
Accumulated amortisation (2.501) (7.728)
Net book value 3,712 1,889
Remaining useful life in years 1.6 1.7
5 INVENTORIES
Raw materials and components — including
in fransit Rs. 484.13 million
(2017: Rs. 118.5 million) 5.1 2,538,161 2,012,275
Work-in-process 5.2 108,584 102,209
Stores and spares 30,660 37,219
“Finished goods - fractors, generators and
implements” 822,097 161,338
Trading stock — spare parts and implements 8,086 8,123
3,507,588 2,321,164
Less: Provision for damaged items - -
3,507,588 2,321,164
5.1 The amount includes raw materials of Rs. 0.46 million (2017: Rs. 0.46 million) held by third parties.
5.2 The amount includes work-in-process of Rs. 0.07 million (2017: Rs. 2.59 million) held by third parties.
6 TRADE RECEIVABLES - considered good L2018 __\__2017
(Rupees in '000)
Secured - 476
Unsecured 56,606 11,547
56,606 12,023
6.1 The age analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
1 to 6 months 387 2,046
6 to 12 months 124 2,899
More than 1 year 989 7,078
1,450 12,023
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7.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.2.1

11.

111

LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good Note 2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘000)

Loans to employees 7.1 3,406 4,093
Advances to suppliers for goods and services 128,931 197,595
132,337 201,688

This represents current portion of interest free loans given to employees under employee loan schemes
to facilitate purchase of domestic appliaonces and motor cycles. The said loans are repayable over a
period of 24 to 36 months and are secured against provident fund balances.

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM

Note 2018 2017
PREPAYMENTS (Rupees in 000)
Prepayments 6,205 6,551
Other deposits 37,100 5,320
43,305 11,871
INTEREST ACCRUED
Mark-up accrued on bank deposits 1 Q47

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Due from Workers’ Profits Participation Fund 10.1 9,385 8,760
Others 10.2 3.579 3.212
12,964 11,972
Workers’ Profits Participation Fund

At beginning of the year 8,760 2,942
Allocation for the year (200,589) (246,213)
(191,829) (243,271)

Less: Amount paid during the year 201,214 252,031
9,385 8,760

Ofthers includes receivable from related party, CNH Industrial N.V. (formerly CNH Global N.V.), amounting
to Rs. 3.4 million (2017: Nil) against reimburesement of clearing, forwarding and fransportation charges.
The said receivable is outstanding for less than 30 days.

The maxium aggregate due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 3.4

million.
Note 2018 2017

REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT —
(Rupees in ‘'000)

Sales tax 11.1 1,648,704 1,073,186
Special excise duty 148,502 148,502
1,797,206 1,221,688

In 2015, Deputy Commissioner of Inland Revenue had issued recovery nofice to the Company for Rs.
161.8 million on account of sales tax refunds taken by the Company during the year 2006. The Company
had obtained a stay order from the High Court of Sindh against the undue demand and the legal
consultant is of the view that the petition will be decided in favour of the Company.
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12.

121

13.

13.1

14.

141

14.2

14.3

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Note 2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘000)

Investment
Held to maturity - Certificate of Investment 12.1 52,800 52,800

Less: Provision for impairment (52,800) (52,8009

This represents investment in Certificate of Investment (COI) of Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited
(SPLCL) which matured in January 2009, however, encashment proceeds were not received due to
liquidity problem of SPLCL.

Last year, the Board of Directors filed a winding-up petition against SPLC in Sindh High Court for
recovery of the said outstanding amount and appointed M/s Saiduddin and Co. for the said
purpose.

During the year, the Company entered into a settflement agreement with SPLC through The High Court
and accordingly, petition was disposed off by the High Court. It had been agreed that SPLC will pay the
outstanding amount within @ months of the settlement agreement which was due by November 2018.

As atDecember 31, 2018, the Company is not in receipt of any amount from SPLC and are in consultation
with their Legal Counsel for further action.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note 2017
With banks on (Rupees in '000)

- Current accounts 87,323 826,982
- PLS savings and deposit accounts 13.1 175,421 441,621
Cash in hand 324 281
Demand drafts in hand 30,842 71,627

293,910 1,340,511

At December 31, 2018, the mark-up rates on PLS savings and deposit accounts range from 2.4% to 8%
per annum (2017: 2.4% to 6.1% per annum).

SHARE CAPITAL

2017
Authorised share capital (Rupees in '000)
120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each
(2017: 120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each) 600,000 600,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each
2018 2017 2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘'000) (Rupees in ‘'000)
4,500,000 4,500,000 Shares allotted for
consideration paid in cash 22,500 22,500
53,464,201 53,464,201 Shares allotted as
bonus shares 267,321 267,321
57,964,201 57,964,201 289,821 289,821

As at December 31, 2018, Al-Fuftaim Industries Company LLC, U.A.E., the holding company, and CNH
Industrial N.V. (formerly CNH Global N.V.), an associated company, held 50%, i.e., 28,992,705 (2017:
28,992,705) and 43%, i.e., 25,022,379 (2017: 25,022,379) shares of Rs. 5 each respectively.
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15.

16.

17.

171

17.2

18.

19.

RESERVES

Note 2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘000)

Revenue reserve - General - 1,000,000
Unappropriated profit 1,079,576 835,995
1,079,576 1,835,995

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Credit / (debit) balance arising on account of

- accelerated tax depreciation allowances 63,160 63,433
- deferred staff benefits - compensated absences (17,936) (11,854)
- provision for impairment on investment (14,784) (15,840)

30,440 35,739

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 17.1 454,621 239,171
Accrued liabilities 440,791 492,873
Accrued markup 70,894 80
Customers’ and dealers” advances - unsecured 31,504 1,872,120
Deposits 17.2 67,934 65,480
Taxes deducted at source 20,347 21,890
Workers' Welfare Fund 76,563 151,706
"Royalty payable to CNH Industrial N.V. - associated company” 59,242 194,864
Ofthers 25,330 27,452

1,247,226 3,065,636

The creditorsinclude payable to arelated party, CNH Industrial N.V. (formerly CNH Global N.V.), amounting
to Rs. 56.43 million against purchases made during the year.

This represents amount received from customers / deadlers of the Company as a security deposit
with reference to the contracts. As per the requirements of section 217 of the Companies Act,
2017, these deposits are not utilizable for the purpose of business and are kept in separate bank
account.

"SHORT TERM FINANCING - under mark up / profit arangement”

The facility for running finance / running musharikah available from banks amounted to Rs. 4 billion
(2017: 1 bilion). Rates of mark-up / profit ranges from one month KIBOR plus 0.20% (2017: three
months KIBOR plus 0.20%) to one month KIBOR plus 0.5% (2017: three months KIBOR plus 0.50%) per
annum.

The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at December 31, 2018 amounted to Rs. 2.7
billion (2017: Rs. 2.75 billion) of which unutilised balance at year end amounted to Rs. 2.3 billion (2017:
Rs 1.76 billion).

The above arrangements are secured by way of pari-passu charge against hypothecation of Company’s
present and future current assets.

COMMITMENTS

Commitments for capital expenditure outstanding as at December 31, 2018 amounted to Rs. 217.82
million (2017: Rs. 78.70 million).
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20. REVENUE

2018 2017
Tractors goods and Total Tractors goods and Total
others others
(Rupees in '000)

Local sales 20,349,319 198,597 20,547,916 20,057,511 119,776 20,177,287
Export sales 41,085 - 41,085 54,661 - 54,661
20,390,404 198,597 20,589,001 20,112,172 119,776 20,231,948
Less: Commission (308,640) (1,625)| (310,265)|  (306,372) (1,542)| (307,914
Sales Tax (889,392) (16,822) (906,214)| (1,040,526)||  (12,060)]|| (1,052,586)
(1,198,032) (18,447) (1,216,479) (1,346,898)  (13,602) (1,360,500)
19,192,372 180,150 19,372,522 18,765,274 106,174 18,871,448

20.1.

21.

These financial statements do not include disclosure relating 1o IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” as the
Company is considered to be a single operating segment.

COST OF GOODS SOLD
Manufactured goods

Raw materials and components consumed
Salaries, wages and benefits

Charge for defined benefit plan

Charge for defined contribution plan

Stores and supplies

Royalty and technical fee

Insurance

Depreciation

Fuel, power and electricity

Inwards freight and tfransportation

Repairs and maintenance

Travelling, vehicle running and entertainment
Rent, rates and taxes

Communication

Printing and stationery

Others

Opening stock of work-in-process
Closing stock of work-in-process
Cost of goods manufactured
Opening stock of finished goods
Closing stock of finished goods
Trading goods

Opening stock

Purchases

Closing stock

(Rupees in ‘'000)

14,224,898 12,604,325
364,293 327,745
5,996 5,189
4,951 3,934
201,246 171,041
158,225 154,832
2,643 2,060
28,796 24,085
51,036 48,395
7,155 7.940
72,422 48,790
7,282 5,966
1,100 1,090

849 617

3,447 2,043
8,556 2,744
102,209 51,118
(108,584) (102,209)
15,136,520 13,359,705
161,338 330,738
(822,097) (161,338)
14,475,761 13,529,105
8,123 3,685
231,240 87,043
239,363 90,728
(8,086) (8,123)
231,277 82,605
14,707,038 13,611,710
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22. DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES PAONKS] 2017

(Rupees in ‘000)

Salaries, wages and benefits 68,413 59,043
Charge for defined benefit plan 1,910 1,833
Charge for defined contribution plan 1,829 1,561
Insurance 80 118
Depreciation / amortisation 10,062 7,615
Fuel, power and electricity 8,054 7,808
Travelling, vehicle running and entertainment 11,849 11,588
Repairs and maintenance 2,775 2,293
Rent, rates and taxes 2,196 1,261
Communication 1,896 1,298
Advertisement and promotion 52,682 53,996
After sales expense 30,562 24,650
Freight charges 81,386 65,060
Legal and professional charges 57 47
Printing and stationery 1,956 1,640
Others 1,243 1,019

276,950 240,830

23. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 218,797 162,672
Charge for defined benefit plan 6,519 6,073
Charge for defined contribution plan 6,104 5,035
Insurance 426 510
Depreciation 31,203 27,342
Travelling, vehicle running and entertainment 9,679 7,317
Repairs and maintenance 1,988 3,557
Rent, rates and faxes 1,767 890
Communication 7,892 7,928
Auditors’ remuneration 23.1 2,834 2,647
Advertising 1,514 1,193
Legal and professional charges 7,370 5,740
Printing and stationery 5,476 5,380
Donation 23.2 312 242
Others 3,544 1,272

305,425 237,798

23.1 Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee 1,600 1,400
Fee for limited review of half yearly financial
statements 400 400

Certification for compliance with Code of
Corporate Governance, certifications for

government and ofher agencies and other services 490 530
Out of pocket expenses 344 317
2,834 2,647

23.2  None of the Directors or their spouses had any interest in the donee.
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24, OTHER INCOME 2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘'000)
Income from financial assets

Return on PLS savings and deposit accounts 29,033 108,055
Income from other assets
Scrap sales 28,061 23,497
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 2,907 11,504
Discount received - 242
Others 1,901 778
32,869 36,021
61,902 144,076
25. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Workers' Profits Participation Fund 200,589 246,213
Workers' Welfare Fund 84,019 93,031
284,608 339,244
26. FINANCE COSTS
Bank charges and commission 2,546 655
Mark up on running finance 123,022 274
125,568 929
27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current
- for the year 1,155,425 1,367,993
- prior year 132,194 89,026
Deferred (5,298) 4,874

1,282,321 1,461,893

27.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit:

Accounting profit before tax 3,734,835 4,585,013
Tax at applicable rate of 29% (2017: 30%) 1,083,102 1,375,504
Effect of final tax on exports (2,093) (3,727)
Tax credit (3,496) (714)
Prior year tax 132,194 89,026
Super Tax 74,765 -

Others (2,151) 1,804

1,282,321 1,461,893

27.2  Inthe view of management, sufficient tax provision has been made in Company’s financial statements.
Comparison of tax provision as per the financial statements viz-a-viz tax assessment for last three years

is as follows:
2017 2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘'000)
Tax assessed as per most recent tax assessement 1,500,187 978,289 808,706
Provision in account for income tax 1,500,187 974,970 812,415

The assessed value for tax years 2017 and 2015 represents return value.,
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28. EARNINGS PER SHARE

2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘000)

"Profit affer taxation afttributable to ordinary shareholders” 2,452,514 3,123,120
Weighted average number of shares

in issue during the year (in thousand) 57,964 57,964
Earnings per share (Rupees) 42.31 53.88

28.1 Adiluted eamings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible
instruments in issue as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 which would have any effect on the eamings
per share if the option to convert exercised.

29. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2018 2017

(Rupees in '000)

Profit before income tax 3,734,835 4,585,013
Add / (less): Adjustment for non-cash charges
and other items
Depreciation and amortisation 70,061 59,042
Retirement benefits charge 14,425 13.095
Gain on disposal of fixed assets (2,907) (11,504)
Return on bank deposits (29,033) (108,0595)
Mark up on running finance 123,022 274
3,910,403 4,537,865
Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes
Decrease / (increase) in current assets Inventories (1,186,424) (893,547)
Trade receivables (44,583) 267,736
Loans and advances 69,351 (107,6406)
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments (31,434) (5,752)
Other receivables (992) 28,877
Refunds due from the Government (575,518) (402,550)
(1,769,600) (1,112,882)
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables (1,889,224) 1,969,823
(3,658,824) 856,941
251,579 5,394,806
30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in hand 324 281
At banks in
- Current accounts 87,323 826,982
- PLS savings accounts 175,421 441,621
262,744 1,268,603
Demand drafts in hand 30,842 71,627
Short term financing - note 18 (3,973,206) -
(3,679,296) 1,340,511
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31.

31.1

31.2

31.3

31.4

31.5

31.6

31.7

31.8

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

As stated in note 2.12 (i) the Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its
permanent employees. The scheme defines an amount of gratuity benefit that an employee will
receive on retirement subject to a minimum qualifying period of service under the scheme. Actuarial
valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest actuarial valuations of the scheme was
carried out as at December 31, 2018.

Plan assets held in trust are govermned by local regulations which mainly include Trust Act, 1882; the
Companies Act, 2017; Income Tax Rules, 2002 and the Rules under the trust deeds. Responsibility
for governance of the Plan, including investment decisions and contribution schedules, lies with
the Board of Trustees. The Company appoints the trustees and all frustees are employees of the
Company.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2018 was carried out using the Projected
Unit Credit Method. Details of the Fund as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:

Statement of financial position reconciliation as at December 31

2018 2017

(Rupees in '000)

Present value of defined benefit obligation 180,396 149,317
Fair value of plan assets (158,794) (139,310)
21,602 10,007
Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation
Obligation as at January 1 149,317 134,996
Current service cost 14,848 13,209
Interest expense 11,592 10,323
Remeasurement on obligation 15,719 2,694
Benefits paid (11,080) (11,905)
Obligation as at December 31 180,396 149,317

Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Fair value as at January 1 139,310 125,281

Interest income 12,015 10,437
Remeasurement on plan assets (5.183) (6,763)
Employer contributions 23,732 22,260
Benefits paid (11,080) (11,905)
Fair value as at December 31 158,794 139,310

Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 14,848 13,209
Interest expense - net (423) (114)
14,425 13,095

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income

Experience losses (15,719) (2,694)
"Remeasurement of fair value of plan assets” (5,183) (6,763)
Remeasurements (20,902) (9,457)
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31.9

31.10

31.11

31.12

31.13

31.14

31.15

Net recognised liability 2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance as at January 1 10,007 9,715
Expense for the year 14,425 13,095
Employer contributions (23,732) (22,260)
"Remeasurement recognised in other

comprehensive income” 20,902 9,457
Balance as at December 31 21,602 10,007
Composition of plan assets: 2018 2017

(Rupees in "000) % (Rupees in '000) %

Term deposits 80,000 50.82 70,000 50.12
Ofthers (include bank balance) 77,426  49.18 69,672 49.88

167,426 100.00 139,672 100.00

Actuarial assumptions 2018 2017

Expected rate of increase in salaries
- Management staff

- Short-term - 1 year 13.25% 8.25%

- Long-term - more than 1 year 13.25% 8.25%
- Non-management staff

- Short-term - 1 year 13.25% 8.25%

- Long-term - more than 1 year 13.25% 8.25%

Discount factor used 13.25% 8.25%

Pre-Retirement mortality was assumed to be SLIC (2001-05) for males and females, as the case may be,
but rated down one year.

The Company ensures asset / liability matching by investing in short-term deposits and does not use
derivatives to manage ifs risk.

The expected return on plan assets has been determined by considering the expected returns available
on the assets underlying the current investment policy.

Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation 1o changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impacton defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
(Rupees in ‘000)

Discount rate af December 31 1% (165,579) 189,521
Future salary increases 1% 190,212 (164,777)

If longevity increases by 1 year, the resultant decrease in obligation is insignificant.

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely 1o occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when
calculating the gratuity liability recognised within the statement of financial position.
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31.16

31.17

31.18

31.19

31.20

31.21

32.

32.1

32.2

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change
compared 1o the previous period.

Historical information

The expected return on plan assets is based on the market expectations and depend upon the asset
portfolio of the fund, at the beginning of the period.

As per actuarial advice, the Company is expected to contribute Rs.19.4 million towards gratuity fund in
2019 (2018: Rs. 13.7 million).

The weighted average duratfion of non-management employees is 32.35 years and of management
employees is 8.88 years.

Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plan.
ERYCE 2 years 5 years 10 years years
Retirement benefit plan 26,280 18,132 68,686 104,238 570,078 787,414

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following fransactions were carried out with related parties during the year:

Relationship Nature of transactions Rupees in thousand
i. Holding company Dividend paid 1,435,139 1,957,008
i, Other related parties  Dividend paid 1,701,522 1,079,090
Royalty paid 264,815 -
Purchases of goods 117,296 -
Contribution to Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
Staff Provident Fund 12,884 10,5630
Contribution to Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
Employees’ Gratuity Fund 23,732 22,260
ii. — Key management
personnel Salaries and other employee benefits 151,656 140,770
Refirement benefits 11,232 10,894

The outstanding balances of related parties as at Decemiber 31, 2018 are included in frade and other
payables and other receivables respectively.

Following are the related parties including associated companies with whom the Company had
entered info fransactions or have arrangements / agreements in place:

CRIEERY REE Basis of Aggregate % of
pany relationship sharholding

Al-Futtaim Industries Company (LLC) Parent 50.02%
2 CNH Industrial N.v. (formerly CNH Global N.v.) Associate  43.17%
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32.2.1 Al-Fuftaim Industries Company (LLC) is a Company incorporated in Dubai having registered address
at PO. Box 152, Dubai, UAE. The names of Principal Officers / Authorized Agents are Abdullah Hamad
Al Futtaim and Omar Abdulla Al Futtaim. As per their local requirement, Al-Futtaim Industries Company
LLC is not required to have separate audited financial statements. Al-Futtaim Private Company LLC's
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 were prepared on going concern basis,
the Al-Futtaim Private Company LLC's auditors have expressed an unmodified opinion.

32.2.2 CNH Industrial N.V. (formerly CNH Global N.V.) is a Company incorporated in the Netherlands having
registered address at 25 James's Street, London, SWTA, United Kingdom. The Chief Executive Officer
of CNH International N.V. is Richard J. Tobin. As per the latest available financial statements which are
prepared on going concern basis, the CNH International N.V.'s auditors have expressed an unmodified
opinion.,

33. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statfements for remuneration, including all benefits, to
the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

(Rupees in '000)

Managerialremuneration 39,366 33,000 14,188 11,676 27,739 22,170
Bonus 15,048 11,880 2,551 1,158 5,671 4,139
Houserent 13.216 13,200 2,844 2,084 10,310 7,084
Utilities 4,465 6,600 632 463 2,291 1,674
Retirement benefits 5,418 5,200 1,184 992 4,631 3.035
Leave passage 7.364 1,247 1,484 533 4,486 1,085
Other expenses - - - 48 - -

84,877 71,127 22,883 16,854 55,128 39,087
Numberof persons 1 1 1 1 9 6

* Comparitive figures have been restated to reflect changes in the definition of executive as per the
Companies Act, 2017

The Chief Executive, Director and Executives are also provided with Company maintained cars and are
entitled to medical benefits and club subscription in accordance with their entitements.

Aggregate amount charged to statement of profit or loss for the year in respect of fee to one independent
director was Rs. 1.5 million (2017: Rs. 1.25 million).

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Interest / mark-up bearing Non interest bearing

Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity Total
up toone after one Sub-total Uuptoone after one Sub-total
year year year year
(i) FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans and receivables
Loans and advances - - - 3,406 891 4,297 4,297
Deposits - - - - 3,805 3,805 3,805
Trade receivables - - - 56,606 - 56,606 56,606
Interest accrued - - - 1 - 1 1
Other receivables - - - 3,579 - 3,579 3,579
Cash and bank balances 175,421 - 175,421 118,489 - 118,489 293,910
2018 175,421 - 175,421 182,081 4,696 186,777 362,198
2017 441,621 - 441,621 921,965 4,660 926,625 1,368,246
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Interest / mark-up bearing Non interest bearing

Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity

up toone afterone Sub-total Uptoone afterone  Sub-total
year year year year
At amortised cost
Trade and other payables - - - 1,118,812 - 1,118,812 1,118,812
Unclaimed Dividend - - - 79,529 - 79.529 79,529
2018 - - - 1,198,341 - 1,198,341 1,198,341
2017 - - - 1,624,539 - 1,624,539 1,624,539

Off balance sheet items

Financial commitments:

“"Contracts for capital expenditure” 217,820
“Letters of credit and guarantee * 396,136
2018 613,956
2017 1,069,677

The effective mark-up rates for the monetary financial assets are mentioned in respective notes to the
financial statements,

(i) Concentrations of credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if
counterparties failed to perform as contracted. Out of the total financial assets of Rs. 0.36 billion
(2017: Rs. 1.37 bilion) the financial assets exposed to the credit risk amount to Rs. 0.30 billion
(2017: Rs. 1.30 billion) which mainly comprise of balances with banks.

The Company places surplus funds with various reputed banks having minimum credit ratings of
A-1 as assigned by credit rating agencies. The Company monitors its exposure to a single bank its
ratings on continuous basis.

The Company’s products are mainly sold against cash or demand drafts issued by Zarai Taragiati
Bank Limited (ZTBL) and certain other commercial banks. Hence, the Company believes that it is
not exposed to credit risk against tfractor sales. As of December 31, 2018, there is no impaired
balance and the carrying amount of frade receivables relates to independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default.

Loans 10 employees are not exposed to any material credit risk and are secured against the
retirement benefits of the respective employees.

Ofther receivables are not exposed to any significant credit risk.

Deposits have been placed mainly with government institutions, hence exposed to no significant
credit risk.

The management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-
parts.

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the Company’s inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The Company
manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and balances with banks. As at December
31, 2018 there is no maturity mismatch between financial assets and liabilities that expose the
Company to liquidity risk.
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35.

36.

37.

37.1

37.2

(iv) Market risk
a) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions
with foreign undertakings. At December 31, 2018 frade and other payables exposed to foreign
currency risk amount o Rs.540.56 million (2017: Rs. 188.85 million).

The company imports raw materials and components in US Dollar and is exposed to Rupee /
US Dollar exchange risk. If the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 4% against US
Dollar with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower
/ higher by Rs. 21.62 million (2017: Rs. 7.55 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses
/ gains on settlement of US Dollar denominated trade payables.

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
the market interest rates. As at December 31, 2018, the Company’s interest bearing financial
assets amounted to Rs. 0.18 billion  (2017: Rs. 0.44 billion) and had the interest rate varied by
100 basis points with all the other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have
been approximately higher / lower by Rs. 1.75 million (2017: Rs. 4.42 million).

(v) Fair values of the financial instruments

The carrying values of all the financial instruments reflected in the financial statements approximate
to their fair values.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability to contfinue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders.

PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

2018 2017

Plant capacity (single shift) - units 30,000 30,000

Actual production - units 24,823 24,091

Actual production of tractors varies in line with the market demand.
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees including confractual employees
at 31 December *431 *431

*This includes 259 (2017: 266) number of factory employees

Average number of employees including confractual **431 **425
employees during the year

**This includes 263 (2017: 261) number of factory employees
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38. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Due to revision in Fourth Schedule to Companies Act, 2017, following required changes have been
made:

- Unclaimed dividend which was previously classified under trade and other payables has been
separately disclosed as unclaimed dividend and unpaid dividend on the face of the statement of
financial position.

- Stores and spares which was separately classified on the face of the unconsolidated statement of
financial position has been presented under inventories.

- Accrued mark-up whichwas previously classified separately on the face of unconsolidated statement
of financial position has now been classified under frade and other payables.

39. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 11th February, 2019 have proposed a final cash dividend
of Rs. 9.00 pershare amountingtoRs. 521.7 million (2017: Rs. 25 pershare amountingtoRs. 1,449.1 million)
subject to approval of the Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

40. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 11th February, 2019 by the Board of Directors.

| A el

CHiéf Executive Director Chief Financial Officer

Annual Report 2018 | 159



160 | Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd



Annual Report 2018 161



Engine Power
Operating Weight
No. of Cylinders
Bore Stroke

Piston Displacement
Maximum Power
Maximum Torque
Pump

| Battery

Air Filter

Fuel Filter

Fuel Tank Capacity
. Transmission

Brakes

Brakes (Parking)
Steering

Driver’s Seat

Power Take off

' Hyd. Pump

Pump Capacity

Maximum Lifting Capacity
Tyre (Front)

Tyre (Rear)

D.T.O.

85hp
2865kg

4

104x115mm

3,908cc

@2600rpm 85hp

@1600rpm 29.7kgm

Distributor type fuel injection pump
with mechanical speed governer.

12 volts 108ah

Oil bath with free cleaner

02 replaceable cartridges

65litres

Gear Box with constant-mesh gears: 8 forward
and 2 reverse speeds:

Oil immerse Disc Brake

Manual lever on right side of operator
Hydrostatic power steering

Fully upholstered,

with parallelogram suspension,
adjustable, foot step.for ease

540 rpm.(1 318” - '6 spline Shaft)@ 2160 engine rpm:

Gear type pump driven from engine crankshaft
26.7 |/min

2,150 kg

7.50-16

18.4/15-30

High speed 35mm dia /same speed as‘engine

NH - DABUNG (85Hp)
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Engine Power
Operating Weight
No. of Cylinders
Bore Stroke

Piston Displacement
Maximum Power
Maximum Torque
Pump

Battery

Air Filter

Fuel Filter

Fuel Tank Capacity
Transmission

| Brakes

Brakes (Parking)
Steering

Driver’s Seat
Power Take off

Pump Capacity

85HP

2600Kg.

4

104x115 mm.

3908 cc

85HP

@1500rpm 27 Kgm.

Distribution Injection type with mechanical and
Hydraulic speed governor.

12 Volts 110/120Ah

Qil bath with pre cleaner and Semi automatic dust unloader
02 replaceable cartridges.

61.01

Gear Box with constant-mesh gears Synchremesh
on 3rd, 4th, 7th, & 8th speeds.

- Oil Immersed, multi disk type; Brakes actuation Hydraulic
- With-hand control lever and flashing warning light
Hydrostatic power with independent circuit

De luxe; withiparallelogram suspension.and
hydraulic.shock absorber, adjustable to driver's weight.
540 rpm (1750 engine RPM)

Shaft dia 35mm, 6 Spline

34.5 L/ min

Maximum Lifting Capacity 2200 kg.

Tyre (Front)
Tyre (Rear)

NH 70-56 4WD (85-Hp)
4X4 Lift-O-Matic Hydrostatic
Power Steering

12.4/11-24
18.4/15-30
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Engine Power 75HP
Operating Weight 2070Kg.

No. of Cylinders 4
Bore Stroke 100x115 mm.
Piston Displacement 3613 cc
Maximum Power @ 2500rpm 75HP
Maximum Torque @1500rpm 22.5 Kgm.
Pump Distribution Injection type with mechanical speed governor. " :
Battery 12 Volts 110/120Ah LRI R e S 3 T T e
Air Filter Oil bath with pre cleaner and Semi automatic dust unloader ) . s NPT =2y
Fuel Filter 02 replaceable cartridges. j
Fuel Tank Capacity 54 Litres
Transmission Gear Box with constant-mesh gears: 8 forward and 2 reverse speeds:
| Brakes Synchromesh on 3rd, 4th, 7th, & 8th speeds.

- Service Dry Band type with mechanical control.
- Oil immerse Disc Brake

Brakes (Parking) With hand lever, on right side of operator.

Steering Hydraulic power with independent oil pump of flow capacity 12 liter / a
minute and separate oil tank capacity 1.8 litres with complete filtering
system.

Fully upholstered, with parallelogram suspension,
adjustable to driver’s weight.

540 rpm (1 318” - 6 spline Shaft)@ 2160_engine.rpm.
Gear type pump driven from engine.

Driver’s Seat

Power Take off

Hyd. Pump -

Pump Capacity ?615801 {(g"n

EN Lifti i .
aximum Lifting Capacity 750 246

Tyre (Front)

16.9/14-30

- Tyre (R

El - Wsligas Speed same as engine -Anti clockwise.
: | D.T.O.

O *

NH - 640 (75Hp)

Power Steering
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Engine Power
Operating Weight
No. of Cylinders
Bore Stroke

Piston Displacement
Maximum Power
Maximum Taorque
Pump

Battery

Air Filter

Fuel Filter

Fuel Tank Capacity
Transmission
Brakes

Brakes (Parking)
Steering

Driver’s Seat
Power Take off

Hyd. Pump
Pump Capacity

Maximum Lifting Capacity

Tyre (Front)
Tyre (Rear)
D.T.O.

NH - GHAZI (65Hp)

Power Steering

65HP

1770Kg.

3

104x115 mm.

2931 cc

@ 2500rpm 65HP

@1500rpm 19.0 Kgm.

Distribution Injection type with mechanical speed governor.
12 Volts 90/95Ah

Oil bath with pre cleaner and Semi automatic dust unloader
02 replaceable cartridges.

54 Litres ,
Gear Box with constant- mesh gears: 8 forward and 2 reverse
speeds:

Synchromesh on-3rd, 4th, 7th, & 8th speeds.

- Service Dry:Band type with mechanical control.

- Oilimmerse Disc Brake

With hand lever, on right side of operatar.

Hydraulic power with independent oil pump of flow capacity

12 liter /minute and-separate oil tank eapacity 1.8 litres
with.complete filtering system.

Fully uphelstered, with parallelogram suspension,
adjustable to driver's weight.

540 rpm. (1 318” - 6:spline Shaft)@ 2160 engine rpm.
Gear type pump driven from engine.

22.71/ min

1650 kg.

6.00- 16

14.9/13-28

Speed same as engine - Anti clockwise.

T
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Engine Power
Operating Weight
No. of Cylinders
Bore Stroke

Piston Displacement
Maximum Power
Maximum Torque
Pump

Battery

Air Filter

Fuel Filter

" Fuel Tank Capacity
Transmission

Brakes

Brakes (Parking)
9 Steering

. Driver’'s Seat

Power Take off

Hyd. Pump
Pump.Capacity

Maximum Lifting Capacity
Tyre (Front)

Tyre (Rear)

D.T.O.

P

55HP

1710Kg.

3

100x115 mm.

2710 cc

@2500rpm 55HP
@1500rpm 16.5 Kgm.
Distribution Injection type with mechanicalspeed governor.
12 Volts 90/95Ah

QOil bath with pre cleaner and Semi automatic dust unloader
02 replaceable cartridges.

54 Litres

Gear Box with constant-mesh gears: 8 forward

and 2 reverse speeds:

Synchromesh on 3rd, 4th, 7th & 8th speeds.

- Service Dry Band type with mechanical control.
With hand lever, on right side of operator.

Manual, Recirculating ball-type, Centre relay:lever
Joint to lubricated for life.

Fully upholstered, with parallelogram suspension,
adjustable to driver’s weight.

540 rpm.(1 318" - 6 spline Shaft)@ 2160 engine rpm.
Gear type pump driven from engine.
22.71/'min

1450 kg.

6.00 - 16

12.4/11-28

Speed same as engine - Anti clockwise.

——

i
iy

NH - 480 (55Hp)
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ENGINE:

No. of cylinders / Aspiration / Emission level 4 /
Turbocharged / Tier 2
Capacity (cm3)

Bore x stroke (mm)
Rated engine power ISO
TR 14396 @ 2000/25/EC 72.1/98
Rated engine speed (rpm) 2500
Max. torque at 1500 rpm (Nm) 370
Torque rise (%) 31

Fuel tank capacity (1) 77

3908
104 x 115

TRANSMISSION

Synchro Shuttle™ transmission — 30kph
— Number of gears (F - R)

Speed range (kph)

Numberof gears with creeper (F - R)
Speed range with creeper (kph)

HYDRAULICS

Flexion Bar lower link draft sensing
Rear linkage category

Mechanical lift with Lift-O-Matic™
Position, draft, mixed and float controls
Main Pump flow — Standard (Ipm)

Main Pump flow — MegaFlow™ (Ipm)
Steering pump flow (Ipm)

Max. number of remote valves

Standard

LINKAGE

Maximum lift capacity at ball ends with
arms horizontal (kg)

Continuous lift capacity through the range
(610mm behind bar ends) (kg)

PTO

540rpm (rpm)

540 Economy rpm

1000rpm

PTO activation

Tun angle 2WD / 4WD (°)

Min. turn radius 2WD¥ 4WD (mm)

DIMENSIONS

A Overall length 2WD / 4WD (mm)

B Minimum width (mm)

C Height at centre of rear axle

to top of ROPS (mm)

D Total height with ROPS (mm)

E Wheelbase 2WD / 4WD

Front 2WD (mm)

Front 4WD (mm)

Rear min. / Max: (all axle types) (mm)
G Ground clearance;y front axle lowest
point 2WD / 4WD (mm)

WEIGHTS

Unballasted weight 2WD / 4WD (kg)
Max. permissible weight on the front
axle 2WD / 4WD (kg)

Max. permissible weight on the rear
axle (kg)

Mechanical
55/50
3900/ 5200

4004 / 3948
1808

1788

2558

2331/ 2275
1485-1985
1560-2000
1400-2000

575/ 465

2820 / 3250

2600 /3000

4250 g -

NEW HOLLAND TD95
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Engine

Pre Cleaner and Air Cleaner
Engine Dust Protector
Cutter bar Width (Feet)
Weight

Threshing System
Separation System

Cleaning System
Grain tank capacity
Number of Gears
Rotary Separator
Cabin

Tyre Size

Crops

Cummins 6 Cylinder 130 H.P Turbo Charged

Dry Type, Outer and Inner

Rotary Air Screen

15 Feet

8000 KG

Conventional / Common

Multi Thresh — Rotary Separator + 5 Straw Walker,
Close unloading tube, hydraulic operation. Independent
drive.

Double Cascading Sieve System, Blower Fan with Variator
3500 Liter

4 Forward + | Reverse

Optional

Optional/AC

Front— TW 23.1-26 14PR TDO1

Rear - SW12.0/75-18 12PR TR03

Wheat, Paddy (Rice), Basmati, Maize, Soybean, Channa,
Sunflower, Gram, Mustard. Arhar, Moong Maize Header 5
Row also Available Specifications subject.to change as
per variant and model year.

Additional kits available for Sunflower, Pulses. Lodged
Conditions etc.

BV

—————,— T

'* = |

! "‘- i
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Manufacturer
Model Name
Generic Type (Primary)

Freatures
Bale Type
Bale Length

Dimensions
Overall Height
Overall Width
Overall Length
Weight

Feed System
Gearbox

Operating Speed
Pick-Up Width

Compatibility
Advertised PTO

PTO Pawer, Rated Engine Speed

Wheels & Tires
Wheels

Tractor Requirement*®

New Holland
BC5060
General

14 x 18 in. (36 x46 cm)
Adjustable, 12 t0|52 in. (31 to 132 cm)

70in. (178 cm)

110 in. (279 cm)

205 in. (521 cm)

3,400 Ib (1542 kg)

High-Capacity, Rotary Feeding System
Heat-treated hypoid gears on tapered roller
bearings running.in an oil bath

65in. (1.65 m)

62 hp (45 kW)
(540 rpm) 93 SPM

27 x 9.5-15, 6PR, 31 x 13.50-15, 6PR

Horsepower (min).62HP

*Tractor weight must be'greater than baler weight excludes baler througher

NEW HOLLAND BC 5060
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INVESTOR FEEDBACK FORM

To request information or submit a comment / query to the Company, please complete the following and
return this page to-

Company Secretary

Tractor House, 102-B,

16th East Street, DHA Phase |,
Off. Korangi Road, Karachi.

Comment / Query

Name

Permanent Mailing Address

Contact Numbers (Tel)
(Fax)
Email

Name of Company
(If Applicable)

Designation
(If Applicable)

Company Address

(If Applicable)
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AL - GHAZI TRACTORS LIMITED
FORM OF PROXY

|/ WE
of
a member(s) of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited and holding ..o
ordinary shares, as per Register Folio ...
TS 1= )= 0] 010} ] .

of

or falling him
of

to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on April 25, 2019 at 14:00 hrs. and at any adjournment
thereof.

As witness my/our hand this ... day of ... 20109.

Five
Rupee
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of
Member(s)

Important:

1. A member entitled to attend a General Meeting entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
instead of him. No person shall act as proxy (except for a corporation) unless he is entitled to be
present and vote in his own right.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or by his attorney duly
authorized in writing. If the member is a corporation its common seal (if any) should be affixed to the
instrument.

3. The proxies shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours
before the time of the meeting.




 AFFIX
 CORRECT
POSTAGE |

The Company Secretary

' Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited .
‘ Tractor House, 102-B, ’

16th East Street, DHA Phase |,
Off. Korangi Road, Karachi.
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FAMCO ASSOCIATES (PVT) LTD. Date: -
8-F, Near Hotel Faran, Nursery

Block 6, P.E.C.H.S.

Shahra-e-Faisal

Karachi.

Dear Sirs,
ELECTRONIC CREDIT MANDATE FORM (MANDATORY)

| hereby communicate to receive my future dividends directly in my bank account as detailed below:

Name of share-holder :

Folio Number/CDC Account No. : Company/Entity:

Contact number

Title of Bank Account

IBAN Number (see Note below)

Name of Bank

Bank branch name & full mailing address :

CNIC No. (copy attached)

NTN (in case of corporate entity)

Cell / Landline number

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and to the best of my knowledge; | shall keep the
Company/Modaraba informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in future.

Shareholder Signature

Notes and Instructions:

1. Please provide complete IBAN Number (24 digits), after checking with your concerned branch to enable
electronic credit directly into your bank account.

2. The payment of cash dividend will be processed based on the account number alone.
Company/Modaraba will rely on the account number as per Shareholder instructions and shall not be
responsible for any loss, damage, liability or claim arising, directly or indirectly, from any error, delay, or
failure in performance of any of its obligations hereunder which is caused by incorrect payment instructions
and /or due to any event beyond the control of the Company/Modaraba.

3. Shareholders holding s hares in physical form must s ubmit this form separately for each Company/
Modaraba where they hold their shares/Modaraba Certificates quoting their folio number.

4. CDC s hareholders are requested to s ubmit their Dividend Mandate directly to their broker
(participant)/CDC Investor Accounts Services. It is not required to file separate form for each Company.

Al Ghazi Tractors Ltd
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GLOSSARY

TERM DEFINITION

AGM Annual General Meeting

AGTL Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited

CAGR Cumulative Annual Growth Rate

CBA Collective Bargaining Agent

CCG Code of Corporate Governance

CDC Central Depository Company

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CNH Case New Holland

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

DGK Dera Ghazi Khan

EBIT Earnings before Interest and Taxation

EBITDA Earnings before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortization
EPS Earnings per Share

ERP Enterprise Resource Planning

FBR Federal Board of Revenue

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GP Gross Profit

Hp Horsepower

HR Human Resources

HSD High Speed Diesel

ICAEW Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales
ICAP Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
ICMAP Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan
IFAC International Federation of Accountants

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

ISO International Organization for Standardization

IT Information Technology

KSE Karachi Stock Exchange

LDO Light Diesel Oil

MIS Management Information System

NP Net Profit

PDI Pre Delivery Inspection

PICG Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
SECP Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
TEVTA Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority
uTsS Ultimate Tensile Strength

WPPF Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

WWEF Workers Welfare Fund

ZTBL Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited
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REGISTERED AND HEAD OFFICE
Tractor House, 102 -B,
16th East Street, DHA Phase |,
Off. Korangi Road, Karachi.
Tel: 92 21 35318901-5
Fax: 92 21 35660882
Email: agtl@alghazitractors.com
Website: www.alghazitractors.com

AL FUTTAIM NEWHOLLAND
QUALITY MANAGEMENT-BRAND STRENGTH

AL-GHAIZI TRACTORS LTD






